GRAND RAPIDS AREA

COALITION TO END
HOMELESSNESS

FY19 HUD COC PROGRAM COMPETITION
NEW/BONUS PROJECT APPLICATION

AGENCY PROFILE

Legal Name of Agency

Community Rebuilders

Project Name

LOFT 2

Contact Person Anna Diaz

Ti

it Chief Operating Officer

LS 1120 Monroe Avenue NW, Grand Rapids, MI 49503

Email . . .
adiaz@communityrebuilders.org

Phone 616-458-5102

Check one:

X  Permanent Supportive Housing for Chronically Homeless

1  DedicatedPLUS Permanent Supportive Housing

1 Rapid Re-Housing

[  Joint Transitional Housing /Rapid Re-Housing

New Project Application from Reallocated Funds

Consolidation (must additionally complete Renewal Project Application for each project)

Check one:

O

X  General Bonus Project

[ Domestic Violence Bonus Project
(I

0 Transition

X

Expansion (must complete Renewal Project Application in addition)

Authorized Representative: | hereby certify that the information contained in this proposal is true and
accurate. Any falsification of information will render the application void, and the application will not be
accepted. This application has been reviewed and authorized for submission by the agency’s board of
directors as of the date indicated.
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Name: Anna Diaz

Title: Chief Operating Officer

Date of Board/Local Planning Body Authorization:

Date of Anticipated Board/Local Planning Body Authorization:

10/10/2019
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ELIGIBILITY THRESHOLDS

Basic HUD Eligibility Thresholds must be satisfied before the CoC may consider a new or bonus project
application for funding.

1. Please indicate by checking the boxes if the agency has any of the following:

a. Outstanding obligation to HUD that is in arrears for which a payment schedule has not been agreed
upon;
(1 Yes No If yes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

b. Debarments and/or Suspensions- In accordance with 2 CFR 2424, no award of federal funds may be
made to debarred or suspended applicants, or those proposed to be debarred or suspended from
doing business with the federal government;

[IYes [X No Ifyes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

¢. Unresolved monitoring findings or outstanding (agency or HUD) audit findings;
[IYes [X No Ifyes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

d. Inadequate financial management or accounting practices within the past three years;
LlYes X No Ifyes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

e. Evidence of untimely expenditures on prior award;
[ Yes No If yes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

f. Major capacity issues that have significantly impacted the operation of a project and its
performance within the past three years;
[ Yes No If yes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

g. Issues impacting the timeliness in reimbursing subrecipients for eligible costs;
[1Yes [X No Ifyes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

h. Served ineligible persons, expended funds on ineligible costs, or failed to expend funds within
statutorily established timeframes within the past three years;
[ Yes No If yes, please explain: Click here to enter text.

2. Does applicant have a financial management system that meets federal standards as described at 2
CFR 200.302?
Yes [ No Please describe: See question #11.

3. Does the agency employ or contract services of an accountant who is familiar with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)?
X Yes [ No
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4. Does the agency obtain an annual audit by an independent certified public accountant?
X Yes [ No

5. Has your organization been monitored by HUD in the past three (3) years? Yes
If yes, include as attachments: Monitoring report from HUD, your organization’s response to any
findings, documentation from HUD that finding or concern has been satisfied, and any other relevant
documentation.
If no, reference most recent monitoring by an entity other than HUD for federal or state funding (ESG,
CDBG, etc) and include as attachments: Monitoring report, your organization’s response to any
findings, documentation from entity that finding or concern has been satisfied, and any other relevant
documentation.

All projects must include as attachments (please number each attachment as follows):

X #1: Proof of 501(c)3 status from the IRS

X #2: Financial statements, including cash flow statement

#3: Non-profit Corporation Update (2013) or equivalent

X #4: DUNS number and Standard Form 424 (SF-424)

#5: Active registration in SAM

#6: Most recent audit by an independent certified public accountant

X #7: Monitoring report by HUD or other federal or state funding entity, including any responses if
there were findings noted in the report

#8: Documentation of all match
X #9 Project Application in e-Snaps

(] #10 Preliminary Rendering and Site Plan (if applicable)
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NEW AND BONUS PROJECT APPLICATION
See scorecard for scoring criteria in each question.

PROJECT OVERVIEW

1.a. Provide a description that addresses the entire scope of the proposed project. (Include target
population(s}, the plan for addressing identified needs/issues of the identified target population,
projected outcomes, and how the project type, scale and location of housing and support services fit
the needs of the identified target population.) (1,000 word limit)

Community Rebuilders is seeking an expansion to our currently funded LOFT (Long Term Opportunities
for Tenancy) project by adding 18 chronically homeless dedicated beds. LOFT is a scattered site
permanent housing project dedicated to serve chronically homeless individuals. We know that
chronically homeless individuals face the greatest barriers to obtaining housing and remaining housed
long term. With the use of best practices such as a strengths based housing first model, we are
ensuring that this most vulnerable population is receiving the most cost-effective intervention
(housing) that serves as a foundation for improved health and well-being. Leasing assistance and
voluntary supportive services are provided to chronically homeless individuals to help them establish
residential stability by increasing their income, benefits and self-determination. A Life Domain Rating
Scale is used to measure improvement in health and wellbeing and self-sufficiency. This tool allows us
to see the effectiveness of the PSH program through the eyes of the consumer. Outreach for eligible
participants is conducted throughout the community utilizing the community’s coordinated entry
system and outreach teams. A core component to LOFT is the community-based Housing Resource
Specialist (HRS) support services model. These HRS staff engage eligible participants through outreach
activities on the streets and in the local missions, further promoting access to the LOFT program for
those who are difficult to reach and have minimal contact with homeless service providers. Our
Housing Resource Specialist staff work with consumers to quickly secure permanent housing in the
community through the private rental market and gain or increase income when possible. This is
accomplished through connection to benefits or working to increase earned income. All avenues to
increase income are explored including non-traditional employment. Additionally, we have a SOAR
trained HRS who can support consumers in the application process for any benefits they may not be
receiving. Community Rebuilders has built a well facilitated coordination with local health providers,
including Mercy Health, Network 180 and Healthcare for Homeless Veterans, to address the identified
needs of consumers and to provide the option for the support services the consumers desire. The
recent PIT/HIC submission indicated that the number of chronically homeless persons in our
community has increased from 102 persons in 2018 to 113 in 2019. The community's housing
prioritization list indicates there are 73 self-reported chronically homeless persons awaiting a PSH
resource. The addition of this funding in our community could make a significant impact towards
HUD's FY2019 priority of ending homelessness for all persons by providing more PSH to end chronic
homelessness. We anticipate that at least 90% of consumers will maintain permanent housing or exit
to permanent housing and at least 80% of consumers will increase their total income.

1.b. Describe the plan to assist participants in securing and maintaining permanent housing that is safe,
affordable, accessible, and acceptable to their needs. (500 word limit)
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Every participant will partner with a trained Housing Resource Specialist {HRS), who is experienced in
providing strengths based housing first services. Participant and HRS will develop individualized
housing plans that allow the project participant housing of their choice. This begins with pre-tenancy
planning and culminates in the execution of a lease. The project will continue to offer leasing
assistance rather than rental assistance. This allows for Community Rebuilders, in unique
circumstances, to hold the lease for chronically homeless participants whom landlords have been
reluctant to offer a lease to. Therefore, this allows the participant to have a sublease with Community
Rebuilders. HRS assist participants in completing an assessment which identifies the participant’s
housing history, past strengths and barriers to housing. Through this assessment, patterns and risks of
maintaining housing, as well as what made them successful in previous housing situations, is
discussed. The focus is on strengths and the talents and abilities each participant posesses and has
used in the past which will be harnessed and used again to garner success for the future. HUD
required Housing Quality Inspections are completed by the HRS and serve as a great learning
opportunity for participants to learn the legal obligations of their landlord and understand their right
to have safe and decent housing. HRS services will promote housing stability which includes
connection to mainstream benefits, counseling, transportation assistance and educational assistance.

1.c. Describe how participants will be assisted to rapidly increase employment and/or income to
maximize their ability to live independently. (500 word limit)

Community Rebuilders has been partnering with the Employment Services Collaborative for the last
two years. This United Way funded collaboration supports navigators and services with Goodwill
Industries, Hope Network, The Literacy Center of West Michigan, Jubilee Jobs, Women’s Resource
Center, the Hispanic Center of West Michigan and Disability Advocates of Kent County. These service
providers have provided on the job training, job coaching and training/educational opportunities for
consumers in PSH projects. Additionally, we have entered into agreements with Mixed Staffing and
Border Foods, to provide supported employment opportunities for Community Rebuilders’
participants, including those in PSH projects. Our Veteran Voices project provides employment
services, social/recreational opportunities and housing stability supports for Veterans in PSH projects.
Community Rebuilders has a certified SOAR staff member, working with PSH participants to increase
their income and understand their employment options while receiving social security disability
benefits. Our team of certified Housing Resource Specialist also facilitate voluntary educational
groups on relevant employment topics. Currently, our Housing Resource Specialist staff work with
consumers to gain or increase income. This is accomplished through connections to benefits, or
working to increase earned income. All avenues to increase income are explored including non-
traditional employment. Consumers are assisted to connect with local employment and rehabilitative
services that meet their specific needs.

EXPERIENCE

2. Describe the experience of the applicant and sub-applicants in working with the proposed target
population and in providing housing similar to that proposed in the application. (500 word limit)
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Community Rebuilders has been serving the chronically homeless population since its beginning. Our
model of providing Housing First services combined with voluntary supportive services has a proven
track record of being highly successful. In the current LOFT project, 95% of participants maintain
permanent housing or exit to permanent housing. Our experience serving the most vulnerable in our
community includes closing an encampment where 12 individuals lived for over 10 years. All 12 were
successfully housed and remain so today. This project will utilize the same successful scattered site
model of housing that has been used successfully by other Community Rebuilders housing

projects. Because we have worked to cultivate a large network of landlords in the private rental
market, we can offer participants choice in their housing. Housing Resource Specialists are trained to
assist with the housing search and placement process and partner with each participant through the
lease signing process. Participants enjoy the full rights and obligations of tenancy. Housing Resource
Specialists, Landlords, and Participants maintain communication throughout tenancy to ensure long
term housing stability. Community Rebuilders has over 20 years experience with this model. Staff
receive initial and refresher training regularly and feedback from consumers is utilized to improve
services.

Please check the proposed target population from the options below.

Chronically homeless XI | Families ]
Veterans O Youth (18-25) O
Domestic Violence O

3. Describe the experience of the applicant and sub-applicants with utilizing a Housing First approach.
(500 word limit)

This project will deliver services using a strengths based Housing First philosophy. Access to housing is
the central goal of the project. All services are voluntary and are primarily delivered after a person is
placed into permanent housing. Supports and services are focused on helping participants obtain and
maintain permanent housing. Strengths based housing plans will be completed with each households.
Strengths based plans create a partnership with the consumer and are tailored to meet the needs of
each participant. We recognize that services to enhance an individual’s or family’s wellbeing can be
more effective when people are in their own home. For this reason, the focus from the moment a
person engages is on getting them housed. Once they are housed, necessary supports and services can
be delivered to help them maintain permanent housing and achieve their personal goals. Community
Rebuilders has been a strong proponent of the Housing First model in our community and nationally and
regularly trains others on using the Housing First approach.

4. Describe the experience of the applicant and sub-applicants in utilizing federal funds. (500 word limit)

Community Rebuilders (CR) has 25 years of experience effectively using federal funds and performing
the types of activities proposed in this application. CR’s lengthy track record of managing all aspects
and phases of project administration from planning to deliverables has been evidenced in the success
of all projects initiated. Community Rebuilders developed and implemented the first rapid rehousing
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program in Kent County and developed the strengths based Housing Resource Specialist model that is
used by the National Alliance to End Homelessness as an example of how to effectively provide
services in rapid rehousing programs. Community Rebuilders has for the past 20 years provided the
Shelter Plus Care program to more than 150 households that are permanently housed in a scattered
site PSH program. Additionally, Community Rebuilders successfully operates five PSH programs that
include PSH for 11 chronically homeless households, 11 disabled Veteran households, and an
additional 46 mixed family and single households while using the strengths based housing first model
of service delivery. Federal funds administered successfully by Community Rebuilders include CoC
funding for PSH,RRH and T-RRH, VA funding for the VRS program, SSVF program and Grant Per Diem
program, ESG Program for tenant-based rental assistance, HOME Program for tenant-based rental
assistance and Michigan Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS) for the PSH/Network
180 partnership program. Our experience with utilizing federal funds expands across the majority of
HUD’s program types. Community Rebuilders' programs have been awarded HUD Best Practice
Awards, and are frequently used as best practice models by the National Alliance to End Homelessness
and consistently meet or exceed national benchmark for outcomes. Most recently Community
Rebuilders has researched, developed, and implemented housing provider homeless documentation
training. This training provides psh providers with the procedure and documentation forms that meet
HUD regulations for documenting chronic homelessness. This training has been sought out by most
housing providers in Kent County and numerous providers across the State who have struggled with
accurately documenting chronic homelessness as required by HUD.

5. Describe the process for the determination of the type, amount, and the duration of rental assistance
for participants. (500 word limit)

Using our highly successful strengths based model, Participants would receive rental assistance
necessary to obtain and maintain permanent housing within the community. Participants pay 30% of
their adjusted gross income toward housing (rent plus utilities) and are assisted with the remaining rent
portion so that monthly rent would be affordable to each household. All consumers in this project must
contribute 30% of their adjusted gross income towards rent and must maintain their housing and abide
by a standard lease agreement. Supports are provided to each household so that their episode of
homelessness is quickly resolved. Additional linkages to community resources are applied to those
households who identify through their housing plan that additional services or natural supports are
needed. Though this is a Permanent Supportive Housing project for persons with disabilities, some
households will be able to exit successfully given time to achieve their goals for the future. Housing
Resource Specialists (HRS) assist each household in identifying their strengths and talents which will help
them achieve the goals of self-sufficiency and permanent housing stability. Each participant completes a
Risk Prevention Plan that identifies strengths and solutions to possible barriers that may arise and
interfere with housing stability.

6. Does the project commit to taking all referrals through the community’s Coordinated Entity process?

Yes If no, explain: Click here to enter text.
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7. What would be the prioritization process for households referred to this project? How will it be
determined who is most vulnerable and the best fit for any referrals to this project? Provide detail from
policy established by the CoC. (500 word limit)

LOFT utilizes our CoC’s Prioritization of Persons Experiencing Chronic Homelessness Policy, adopted in
August 2016. Identification of households experiencing chronic homelessness first occurs through
Coordinated Entry. When coordinated entry is informed of an open CoC program-funded PSH bed, that
is dedicated to a chronically homeless household, the household meeting the highest threshold of
priorization will be referred by Coordinated Entry to the PSH provider. Severity of need is determined
by the use of a standardized assessment tool at Coordinated Entry, such as the SPDAT.

8. Will all participating households served in this project be recorded in HMIS or an equivalent database
for Domestic Violence, in accordance with the community’s Data Quality Standards?

Yes If no, explain: Click here to enter text.

9. Describe the plan for rapid implementation of the project, documenting how the project will be ready
to begin housing the first participant. Provide a detailed schedule of proposed activities for 60 days, 120
days, and 180 days after grant award. (500 word limit)

Implementation will be expedited due to the need for additional support in the community and our well
established PSH program infrastructure. We will immediately begin requesting referrals from HAP and
anticipate having half of the additional participants enrolled within the first 30- 60 days. The balance of
enrollment will occur by the end of the 180 days.

ORGANIZATIONAL CAPACITY

10. Describe agency key staff positions and qualifications of individuals who will carry out the project
(500 word limit):

Key staff positions who will carry out the project are the Project Lead and Housing Resource Specialist.
The Project Lead, under the supervision of the Program Manager, is responsible for the compliance of
contract regulations for assigned programs. This role demonstrates and trains on Housing First strategies
and strengths based housing first philosophy. As a member of the agency’s Operative Management, the
Project Lead models the agency values while motivating their team and leading a positive work
environment. The project lead will be responsible for program and grant reporting as well as assigning
tasks to project Housing Resource Specialist. The Housing Resource Specialist, under the supervision of
the Program Manager, is responsible for providing Strength Based Housing Services to persons
experiencing a housing crisis or homelessness. This role works alongside participants throughout the
housing process for their assigned program. The Housing Resource Specialist has regular interactions
with their Project Lead to ensure effective service delivery complying with contract and agency
requirements.
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11. Describe the agency’s financial management system, including financial reporting, record keeping,
accounting systems, payment procedures, procurement processes, and audit requirements (500 word
limit):

Community Rebuilders places a heavy emphasis on accountability and transparency including reporting
requirements related to the use of funds and maintenance of client level and program services and
expense data. Community Rebuilders follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The
financial records of Community Rebuilders are audited by a Certified Public Accounting firm annually.
Community Rebuilders has a robust system of controls in place and has demonstrated history of
integrity in financial records and reports generating trust with stakeholders. The system of controls
assures appropriate authorization, recording and accountability of assets. Employees share the
responsibility for maintaining and complying with these controls and compliance controls ensure they
are not circumvented. The organization has clearly stated procedures for handling each area, including
system of checks and balances in which no financial transaction is handled by only one person from
beginning to end. The Board and Executive Director share the responsibility for setting a tone and
standard of accountability and conscientiousness regarding the organization’s assets and
responsibilities. We have developed a system and infrastructure of collecting and reporting the required
information to our funding sources. We educate our consumers about the reporting requirements when
collecting data, assess the quality of the information reported by employees and use the collected
information effectively to monitor and oversee each programs’ performance and financial processes and
procedures. For this project we will duplicate our fiscal control systems that work to track and evaluate
program compliance and spending goals in similar HUD programs. Specifically, we utilize a system that
tracks the category of eligibility a person meets when served and the amount of assistance provided.
Employees track services in HMIS and on monthly activity logs, these logs are then compared to logs
kept by the Finance Department and are then approved by the Program Manager. This process
promotes the maintenance of adequate program and fiscal records and files, including source
documentation to support program activities and all expenditures made under the terms of the grant
agreement as required. Community Rebuilders has solid experience and demonstrated success in
complying with all HUD procurement and auditing requirements.

Scope of Proposed Project Proposed Households Served
Total units Households with at
14 least one adult and one 2
child
Total beds 18 Adult households 12
without children
PROJECT BUDGET
Ny Requested . . % of Total
Activity Funds Other Funding Total Project Cost Budget
Acquisition o %
New SO )
Construction %
Rehabilitation SO %
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Leasing $134,280 44 %
Rental o

Assistance i
Supp?ortlve 596,187 31%
Services

Operating Costs | $6,750 2%
HMIS $47,914 16 %
Project $21,462

Administration 7 %
(limited to 7%)

Total Project $306,593

Cost

Complete Match and Leveraging worksheet, Attachment A.
See scorecard for scoring criteria based on budget information, questions 12-15
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Attachment B

HUD General Section Certificates

The agency certifies to the Grand Rapids Area Coalition to End Homelessness that it and its principals are
in compliance with the following requirements as indicated by checking the box.

Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity. See CFR 578.93 for specific requirements related to Fair Housing
and Equal Opportunity.

Equal Access to Housing in HUD Programs Regardless of Sexual Orientation or Gender Identity. See
the Federal Register dated February 1, 2012, Docket No. FR 5359-F-02 and Section V.C.1.f. of the FY
2017 General Section.

Debarment and Suspension. See Section I11.C.4.c. of the FY 2015 General Section. Additionally, it is the
responsibility of the recipient to ensure that all subrecipients are not debarred or suspended. (24 CFR
578.23((3)(c)(4)(v).d. Delinquent Federal Debts. See Section V.B.3. of the FY 2017 General Section.

X Compliance with Fair Housing and Civil Rights. See Section V.C.1.a. of the FY 2017 General Section.

X Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency
(LEP). See Section V.C.1.d. of the FY 2017 General Section.

X Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-income Persons (Section 3). See Section V.C.1.c. of the
FY 2017 General Section.

X Conducting Business in Accordance with Core Values and Ethical Standards/Code of Conduct. See
Section V.C.15. of the FY 2017 General Section.

X Prohibition Against Lobbying Activities. See Section V.C.15. of the FY 2017 General Section.
HUD Habitability Standards inspections on all units, at a minimum.

X Participation in HUD-Sponsored Program Evaluation. See Section V.C.5. of the FY 2017 General
Section.

X Environmental Requirements. Notwithstanding provisions at 24 CFR 578.31 and 24 CFR 578.99(a) of
the CoC Program interim rule, and in accordance with Section 100261(3) of MAP-21 (Pub. L. 112-141,
126 Stat. 405), activities under this NOFA are subject to environmental review by a responsible entity
under HUD regulations at 24 CFR part 58.

X Drug-Free Workplace. See Section V1.B.9. of the FY 2015 General Section. n. Safeguarding
Resident/Client Files. See Section V.C.11 of the FY 2017 General Section.

X Compliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (Pub. L. 209-282)
(Transparency Act), as amended. See Section V.C.13. of the FY 2017 General Section.

Lead-Based Paint Requirements. For housing constructed before 1978 (with certain statutory and
regulatory exceptions), CoC Program recipients must comply with the requirements of the Lead-Based
Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4801, et seq.), as amended by the Residential Lead-Based
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Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 4851, et seq.); and implementing regulations of HUD,
at 24 CFR part 35; the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR part 745, or State/Tribal lead
rules implemented under EPA authorization; and the Occupational Safety and Health Administration at
29 CFR 1926.62 and 29 CFR 1910.1025.

Violence Against Women Reauthorization Act of 2013: Implementation in HUD Housing Programs (24
CFR Parts 5, 91, 92, 93, 200, 247, 547, 576, 880, 882, 883, 884, 886, 891, 905, 960, 966, 982, and 983).

Attestation that all attachments as required by HUD are uploaded in e-snaps. See Notice of Funding
Availability for the 2018 Continuum of Care Program Competition FR-6200-N-25.

This list is not exhaustive of all HUD requirements. Applicants are encouraged to review the 2018

General Section, found at:
https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/spm/gmomgmt/grantsinfo/fundingopps to ensure eligibility.

Agency: Community Rebuilders
Acknowledged By: Anna Diaz
Title: Chief Operating Officer

Date: 8/23/2019
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‘APR % 1998

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
DISTRICT DIRECTOR
P. O. BOX 25080

CINCINNATI, OH 45201
Employer Identification Number:

Date: - 38-3094108
MAR 2 9 1995 .
17053276033005
COMMUNITY REBUILDERS Contact Person:
1136 WEALTHY STREET SBE D. A. DOWNING
GRAND RAPIDS, MI 43506 Contact Telephone Number:

(513) 684-3957
Accounting Period Ending:
December 31
Form 990 Required:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
Yes

Dear Applicant:

Based on information supplied., and assuming your operations will be as
stated in your application for recogmition of exemption, we have determined
you are exempt from federal income tax under section 501 (a) of the Internal
Revenue Code as an organization described in section 501(c) (3).

We have further determined that you are not a private foundation within
the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code, because you are an orgamization
described in section 509(a) (2).

If your sources of support, or your purposes, character, or wethod of
operation change, please let us know so we can consider the effect of the
change on your exempt status and foundation status. In the cesc of an amend-
ment to your organizational document or bylaws, please send us a copy of the
amended document or bylaws. Also, you should inform us of all changes in your

name or address.

As of January 1, 1984, you are liable for taxes under the Federal
Insurance Contributions Act (social security taxes) on remmeration of $100
or more you pay to each of your employees during a calendar year. You are
not liable for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA).

Since you are not a private foundation, you are not subject to the excise
taxes under Chapter 42 of the Code. However, you are not automatically exempt
from other federal excise taxes. If you have any questions about wxcise,
employment, or other federal taxes, please let us know.

Grantors and contributors may rely on this determination unless the
Internal Revenue Service publishes notice to the contrary. However, if you
lose your gection 509(a) (2) status, a grantor or contributor may not rely
on this determination if he or she was in part responsible for, or was aware
of, the act or failure to act, or the gsubstantial or material change on the
part of the organization that resulted in your loss of such status, or if he or
she acquired knowledge that the Internal Revenue Sexvice had given notice that
you would no longer be classified as a section 509(a) (2) organization.

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of the

Letter 947 (DO/CG)



-2-

COMMUNITY REBUILDERS

Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or for your use
are deductible for federal estate and gift tax purposes if they meet the
applicable provisions of Code sections 2055, 2106, and 2522.

Contribution deductions are allowable to donors only to the extent that
their contributions are gifts, with no consideration received. Ticket pur-
chases and gimilar payments in conjunction with fundraising events may not
necessarily qualify as deductible contributions, depending on the circum-
stances. See Revenue Ruling 67-246, published in Cumulative Bulletin 1967-2,
on page 104, which sets forth guidelines regarding the deductibility, as chari-
table contributions, of payments made by taxpayers for admission to or other
participation in fundraising activities for charity.

In the heading of this letter we have indicated whether you must file Form
990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax. If Yes is indicated, you
are required to file Form 990 only if your gross receipts each year are
normally more than $25,000. However, if you receive a Form 990 package in the
mail, please file the return even if you do not exceed the gross receipts test.
If you are not required to file, simply attach the label provided, check the
box in the heading to indicate that your annual gross receipts are normally
$25,000 or lessa, and sign the retuxn.

If a return is required, it must be filed by the 1Sth day of the fifth
month after the end of your annual accounting period. A penalty of $10 a day
is charged when a return is filed late, unless there is reasonable cause for
the delay. However, the maximum penalty charged camnnot exceed §5,000 or 5 per-
cent of your gross receipts for the year, whichever is less. This penalty may
also be charged if a returm is not complete, so please be sure your return is
complete before you file it.

You are not required to file federal income tax returns unless you are
subject to the tax on unrelated business income under sectian 511 of the Code.
If you are subject to this tax, you must file an income tax return on Form
990-T, Exempt Organization Business Income Tax Return. In this letter we are
not determining whether any of your present or proposed activities are unre-
lated trade or business as defined in section 513 of the Code.

You need an employer identification number even if you have no employees.
If an employer identification number was not entered on your application, a
number will be assigned to you and you will be advised of it. Please use that
number on all returns you file and in all correspondence with the Internal
Revenue Service.

Since you have not indicated that you intend to finance your activities
with the proceeds of tax exempt bond financing, in this letter, we have not
determined the effect of such financing on your tax exempt status.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the enclosed addendum is an integral part of this letter.

Letter 947 (DO/CG)
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s

Because this letter could help resolve any questions about your exempt
status and foundation status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

Wwe have sent a copy of this letter to your representative as indicated in
your power of attormey.

If you have any questions, please contact the person whose name and

telephone number are shown in the heading of this letter.
7
! 6:. 4

Singerely yours,

C. Ashley ard
District Director

Enclosure (s) :
Addendum

Letter 947 (DO/CG)
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS

Relief under section 301.9100-1 of the Income Tax Regulations has been
granted. Therefore, your exemption under section 501(c) (3) of the Code is
effective January 13, 1993, the date you were incorporated.

-

Letter 947 (DO/CG)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Community Rebuilders
Grand Rapids, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Rebuilders (a
nonprofit organization), which are comprised of the statement of financial position as of December 31,
2017 and 2016, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion,

360 East Beltline, NI, Suite 200 Grand Rapids, MI 49506-1208
P 616,439,223} I 616.459,3469



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Community Rebuilders as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued under separate
cover our report dated June 22, 2018, on our consideration of Community Rebuilders’ internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Rebuilders’ internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Rebuilders’ internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

DOLINKA, VANNOORD & COMPANY, P.L.L.P.
ol VT L2, /27

Certified Public Accountants
Grand Rapids, Michigan

June 22, 2018



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

ASSETS
2017 2016
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 456,471 $ 53,318
Accounts Receivable:
Grants 324,942 346,517
Contributions - 400
Rentals - Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 22,917 58,091
Inventory 6,148 24,590
Prepaid Expenses 22,384 21,649
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS $ 832,862 $ 504,565
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and Equipment $ 1,587,556 $ 1,587,556
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,118,882) (1,069,328)
NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT § 468,674 $ 518,228
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,301,536 S 1,022,793
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 53,999 $ 28,798
Line of Credit 125,000 175,000
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 34,771 36,411
Security Deposits 23,325 21,915
Deferred Revenue 14,825 -
Other Accrued Liabilities 32,876 28,996
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 284,796 $ 291,120
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt - Net of Current Portion $ 213,153 $ 247717
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 497949 $ 538,837
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted $ 562,142 $ 476,129
Temporarily Restricted 241,445 7,827
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 803,587 $ 483,956
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,301,536 $ 1,022,793

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See independent auditors’ report.
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grant Revenue
Program Revenue
Rental Income
Contributions
Miscellaneous
Interest [ncome
Net Assets Released from Restriction

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

PROGRAM EXPENSES
Program Services
Supporting Services - Management
and General

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

See independent auditors’ report.

Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 5,595,549 $ $ 5,595,549
268,189 268,189
271,584 - 271,584
62,971 275,569 338,540
8,087 - 8,087
237 > 237
41,951 (41,951) R
$ 6,248,568 $ 233,618 $ 6,482,186
$ 5,820,808 $ - $ 5,820,808
341,747 < 341,747
$ 6,162,555 $ - $ 6,162,555
$ 86,013 $ 233,618 $ 319,631
476,129 7.827 483,956
$ 562,142 $ 241,445 $ 803,587

4



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
REVENUE AND SUPPORT
Grant Revenue $ 4,661,383 $ - $ 4,661,383
Program Revenue 265,333 - 265,333
Rental Income 289,118 - 289,118
Contributions 100,755 14,608 115,363
Miscellaneous 10,313 - 10,313
Interest Income 44 - 44
Net Assets Released from Restriction 13,597 (13,597) i
TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT § 5,340,543 $ 1,011 $ 5,341,554
PROGRAM EXPENSES
Program Services $ 5,004915 $ - $ 5,004,915
Supporting Services - Management
and General 285,596 - 285,596
TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES $ 5,290,511 3 - $ 5,290,511
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS $ 50,032 $ 1,011 $ 51,043
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 426,097 6,816 432913
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 476,129 $ 7,827 $ 483,956

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See independent auditors’ report.



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENGES
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COMMUN(TY REBUILDERS

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPRNSES
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Grants

Cash Received from Program Service Revenue

Cash Received from Rentals

Cash Received from Contributions

Cash Received from Miscellaneous

Cash Received from Interest

Cash Paid for Interest Expense

Cash Paid for Program Expenses (Excluding Interest)

Cash Paid for Management and General Expenses (Excluding Interest)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash Paid for Property and Equipment

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Long-Term Debt
Repayments of Long-Term Debt
Cash Received from Line of Credit
Repayments of Line of Credit

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH - END OF YEAR

NON CASH TRANSACTIONS

2017 2016
$ 5,631,949 $ 4,448,157
222,879 203,530
303,158 316,197
316,876 39,348
8,087 10,313
237 44
(23,740) (15,305)
(5,628,342) (4,837,830)
(341,747) (285,123)
$ 489357 $  (120,669)
$ - $ (181,952)
$ - $ 186,542
(36,204) (35,576)
175,000 50,000
(225,000) (25,000)
$ (86204) B 175966
$ 403,153 $  (126,655)
53,318 179,973
$ 456,471 $ 53,318

The Organization received $18,552 and $75,615 of donated goods and services for the years ended December 31,

2017 and 2016, respectively.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
See independent auditors’ report.



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH

FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Adjustments:
Depreciation

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Accounts Payable
Security Deposits
Deferred Revenue
Other Accrued Liabilities

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See independent auditors’ report.

2017 2016
$ 319,631 $ 51,043
49,554 50,257
57,149 (167,877)
18,442 (24,590}
(735) 3,770
25,201 25,006
1,410 1,842
14,825 (66,219)
3,880 6,099
$ 489357 $  (120,669)




COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Organization

Community Rebuilders (the “Organization”) is a nonprofit organization whose mission is to provide housing
opportunities and support services to households with a housing crisis in Kent County, The Organization utilizes a
housing first approach focused on rapidly re-housing homeless households by providing access to affordable housing
with supports. The provision of rent assistance and housing stabilization services, such as strengths-based case
management, help with employment, connecting with mainstream resources like TANF and SSI/SSDI, budget
counseling, and childcare assistance etc. are utilized to assist households to obtain housing and remain stably housed.
The Organization prevents households from becoming homeless through the provision of rent assistance — paying back
rent and effective case management and homeless prevention planning,

The Organization operates the following programs;

Housing Solutions Project — this project serves individuals and families who have a severe and persistent disabling
condition who are also experiencing long term or recurring homelessness. This project successfully links these
households to permanent housing and the necessary supports to end their homeless and promote their improved
health and wellbeing. Persons in this project have complex needs. This project reduces and removes barriers for
households with mental and physical health issues, substance use issues, poor credit or financial history or past
involvernent with the criminal justice system. This project relies upon strong and direct referral linkages and
relationships to mental and physical health providers, outreach programs and crisis response systems. Housing is
provided primarily in the private rental market. The project participant contributes 30% of their income towards
rent with the remainder being paid with project funds.

Keys First Project — this project is designed to help families quickly exit homelessness and return to permanent
housing. Assistance is offered without preconditions - like employment, income absence of criminal history, or
sobriety. The resources provided are tailored to the unique needs of each household. The services emphasize each
individual’s self-determination and strengths and promote long-term housing stability and self-sufficiency.

LOFT Project — this project serves individuals who have a severe and persistent disabling condition who are also
experiencing long term or recurring homelessness. This project successfully links these households to permanent
housing and the necessary supports to end their homelessness and promote their improved health and wellbeing,
Persons in this project have complex needs. This project reduces and removes barriers for households with mental
and physical heaith issues, substance use issues, poor credit or financial history or past invalvement with the
criminal justice system. This project relies upon strong and direct referral linkages and relationships to mental and
physical health providers, outreach programs and crisis response systems. Housing is provided primarily in the
private rental market. The project participant contributes 30% of their income towards rent with the remainder
being paid with project funds.

HERQOS - this project serves Veterans who have a severe and persistent disabling condition who are also
experiencing long-term or recurring homelessness. This project successfully links these households to permanent
housing and the necessary supports to end their homeless and promote their improved health and wellbeing,
Persons in this project have complex needs. This project reduces and removes barriers for households with mental
and physical health issues, substance use issues, poor credit or financial history or past involvement with the
criminal justice system. This project relies upon strong and direct referral linkages and relationships to mental and
physical health providers, outreach programs and crisis response systems. Housing is provided primarily in the
private rental market. The project participant contributes 30% of their income towards rent with the remainder
being paid with project funds.

See independent auditors’ report.



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Nature of Organization — continued

Shelter Plus Care — this project serves persons experiencing homelessness who have a severe and persistent
disabling condition. Although, not required, most of the participants are also experiencing long term or recurring
homelessness. This project successfully links theses households to permanent housing and the necessary supports
to end their homelessness and promote their improved health and wellbeing, Persons in this project have complex
needs. This project reduces and removes barriers for households with mental and physical health issues, substance
use issues, poor credit or financial history or past involvement with the criminal justice system. This project relies
upon strong and direct referral linkages and relationships to mental and physical health providers, outreach
programs and crisis response systems. Housing is provided primarily in the private rental market. The project
participant contributes 30% of their income towards rent with the remainder being paid with project funds.

Rental Program — This program expands opportunities for tenancy in the rental market by providing affordable
rental units. The units are rented at or below fair market rent to individuals and families who are working to rebuild
their rental histories and secure rental housing despite poverty, past evictions and poor credit histories.

Housing Opportunities for Persons Living with Aids/ HIV Related Illnesses (HOPWA) — this project provides
housing assistance and supports low-income households living with HIV/AIDS. Assistance and services are
provided to promote safe, stable housing that provides the essential foundation for successtul management of HIV.

United Way Allocation — this project supports services that emphasize people’s self-determination and strengths
and promote housing stability. These services value the capacity, skills, knowledge, connections and potential in
individuals and communities. These services, called Strengths-Based, produce results of long-term housing
stability and increased self-sufficiency for program participants,

VA Homeless Veterans Per Diem Program, Veteran Heights — this project serves homeless Veterans that have
been offered and accepted a permanent housing intervention and are not able to immediately enter the permanent
housing. A short-term stay of generally less than 90 days in transitional housing is provided. Additional supports
and case management are provided to promote an individualized goal and action plan that is focused on the needs
of the Veteran and the move to permanent housing.

Supportive Services for Veteran Families Program — this program provides a broad range of services and housing
assistance to very low-income Veterans and their families to deliver effective and efficient homelessness
prevention and rapid-re-housing assistance. Five key areas of service include: 1. Outreach, engagement and
admission, 2. Assessment and housing plan, 3. Participant services non-financial, 4. Participant services, financial
and 5. Landlord supports.

Health Care for Homeless Veterans, Veteran Residential Services — This program provides housing and supports
to Veterans who are at imminent risk of homelessness or currently experiencing homelessness. Participants are
able to move from the streets and places unfit for human habitation into a transitional home that is safe and
supportive of their health recovery needs and promotes their move to permanent housing within 60-90 days.

PSH Connections — this project serves individuals and families who have a severe and persistent disabling
condition who are also experiencing homelessness. This project successfully links these households to permanent
housing and the necessary supports to end their homelessness and promote their improved health and wellbeing.
All households in this program are also receiving behavioral health services funded by Network 180,

See independent auditors’ report.
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Nature of Organization — continued

Rapid Rehousing Youth Collaborative — this project is designed to help youth age 18-24 quickly exit homelessness
and return to permanent housing. Assistance is offered without preconditions — like employment, income, absence
of criminal history, or sobriety. The resources provided are tailored to the unique needs of each youth, The youth
are assisted to secure housing and based on each youth’s unique needs, preferences and financial resources services
are provided to help the youth maintain housing and increase their income and well-being, These services value the
capacity, skills, knowledge, connections and potential of each youth and community. Rental assistance and
services are typically not longer than 3-12 months.

HOME/Kent Together — this project makes housing affordable for persons at imminent risk of homelessness or
currently homeless by providing short-term rental voucher assistance and supportive services to promote increased
income and long-term housing stability.

GRCF — Afier Hub Program — this project is a public/private partnership that promote the health and wellbeing of
Veterans by using two national programs, Healthy Minds, Healthy Bodies and the Mindful Resilience Veterans
Yoga Project. This project builds the communities capacity to meet the social and physical needs of Veterans
through trainings and education. Vetcrans arc assisted to build new skills and networks that support reintegration
into the community after military service.

Emergency Solutions Grant Program — this program engages homeless individuals and families in rapid rehousing
services. Assistance is offered without preconditions — like employment, income, absence of criminal history, or
sobriety. The resources provided are tailored to the unique needs of each household. Households are assisted to first
secure housing and based on each tamily’s unique needs, preferences and financial resources services are provided.

MSHDA — this program was a 2016 initiative between the COC and Michigan Housing Development Authority to
support Ending Veterans Homelessness by the end of 2016. These funds were intended to supplement SSVF
program dollars received through the Veterans Administration.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting utilizing
three classes of net assets for reporting and presentation as follows:

Unrestricted net assets represent the Organization’s resources that are available for operations. For
reporting purposes it is the Organization’s policy to record items with temporary restrictions which
are satisfied within the same reporting period as unrestricted assets.

Temporarily restricted net assets represent contributions received by the Organization which have
been designated for a special purpose by the donor. Once the restrictions have been met, the
contributions will be released from their restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets represent confributions that are subject to restrictions of gift
instruments requiring that the principal be maintained in perpetuity and invested. As of December
31,2017 and 2016, the Organization had no permanently restricted net assets.

See independent auditors’ report.
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Concentration of Funding

The Organization receives virtually all of its funding from U.S. Federal, state and local governments. Loss of
this funding would result in a substantial reduction in program services.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staternents and the
teported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting year. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and interest bearing money market accounts, Although
the balances exceed the federally insured limits at certain times during the year and at year end, they are, in the opinion
of management, subject to minimal risk.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable includes amounts due from grant programs, contributions and rents due from tenants and
are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for probable
uncollectible amounts through the provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on
its assessment of the current status of individual receivables. Balances that are still outstanding after management has
used reasonable collection efforts are written off, The Organization has established an allowance of $1,228 and $967
for uncollectible rents for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists of donated furniture and household goods recorded at fair market value of the items at the
time of donation. These items will be distributed to program participants during 2018,

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at the fair market value on the date of the gift.
Equipment, major improvements and renewals are capitalized if the costs exceeds $5,000, while ordinary maintenance
and repairs are expensed. Management annually reviews these assets to determine whether carrying values have been
impaired. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets,
which generally range from 3 to 27.5 years.

Contributions and Rental Revenue

Contributions are recognized as revenue when promises to give are received. Contributions received are
recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted support, depending on the existence or nature
of any donor restrictions. Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-restricted support is
reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction.
Revenues from rental income and other charges to residents are recognized in the month eamed.

See independent auditors’ report.
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Grant Revenue Recognition/Deferred Revenue

Revenue from government grants qualifies as “exchange transaction” type revenue. Accordingly, government
grants are recognized as revenue in the period in which expenditures are made. Grant proceeds received in advance of
expenditures are recorded as deferred revenue in the staternent of financial position.

Functional Expenses

Expenses are charged to each program based on direct expenditures incuired. Any program expenses not
directly chargeable have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

The Organization qualifies as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code and is exempt from similar state and local taxes. Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes in the
accompanying financial statements.

With few exceptions, periods ending December 31, 2014 and thereafier are subject to U.S. tax examinations
by tax authorities.

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following is a summary of property and equipment as of December 31:

2017 2016

Land $ 48,712 $ 48,712
Buildings 623,312 623,312
Building Improvements 661,121 661,121
Leasehold Improvements 224,920 224,920
Transportation Equipment 21,915 21,915
Furniture and Fixtures 7,576 7,576
Total Property and Equipment $ 1,587,556 $ 1,587,556
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,118,882 1,069,328
NET PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT $ 468,674 $ 518,228

NOTE 3 — LINE OF CREDIT

During 2017, the Organization renewed their line of credit agreement with a bank for $250,000. The
outstanding balance on the line of credit was $125,000 and $175,000 for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively. The line requires monthly interest payments at a rate of 0.75% above the prime rate
(4.50% at December 31, 2017) but not lower than 4.50%. The line of credit is secured by all assets of the
Organization and matures in October, 2018.

See independent auditors’ report.
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following obligations at December 31:

2017 2016
Note payable to a bank, collateralized by a real estate mortgage,
due in monthly installments of $4,000 including interest at 5.70%
per annum, with a final balloon payment in October, 2021. § 247924 § 280,565
Loan payable to Ford Motor Credit Company, collateralized by a
vehicle, due in monthly instaliments of $520 including interest at
6.54% per annum. This loan was paid off in 2017. - 3,563
TOTAL $ 247,924 § 284,128
Less: Current Portion (34,771) (36,411)
NET LONG-TERM DERT $ 213,153 $ 247717
Current maturities of long-term debt:
December 31, 2018 $ 34,771
December 31, 2019 36,805
December 31, 2020 38,959
December 31, 2021 137,389
TOTAL $ 247,924
NOTE 5-RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:
2017 2016
GRCF - After Hub Program $ 227429 $ -
Veteran Programs 14,016 5,387
Housing Center Move - 2,440
TOTAL $ 241,445 $ 7,827

See independent auditors’ report.



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 6 —- LEASES

During 2015, the Organization renewed their agreement to lease office space. The building lease is a five year
operating lease and requires monthly payments of $3,882. The terms of the lease require the base rent to be adjusted on
the first day of each subsequent 12-month period by the lesser of the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index or
3%. This lease expires in December, 2020.

During 2015, the Organization renewed their agreement to lease additional office space. The lease is an
operating lease which may be terminated at the end of any calendar year by giving 60 days prior written notice and
requires monthly payments of $1,226.

During 2017, the Organization entered into an agreement to lease space from a church to use for housing
clients. The lease is an operating lease which may be terminated at any time by giving 60 days prior written notice and
requires monthly payments of $1,250. The terms of the lease require the base rent to be adjusted on the first day of each
subsequent 12-month period by the lesser of the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index or 3%. This lease
expires in October, 2022.

The Organization leases copy machines under an operating lease which requires monthly payments of $859
and expires in November, 2018.

The future minimum lease obligations in effect at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31, 2018 $ 70,745
December 31,2019 46,584
December 31, 2020 46,584

Total lease expense was $78,159 and $69,287 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

NOTE 7 - CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of its activities, the Organization is a party to various legal actions and is subject to
certain asserted and unasserted claims and assessments. The actual costs to the Organization, if any, in the event of an
unfavorable outcome, and net of any applicable insurance recoveries, cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
Therefore, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying statement of financial position.

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN

The Organization provides a simplified employee pension plan for all eligible employees. The Organization’s
retirement plan contribution is equal to 3% of an eligible employee’s salary for 2017 and 2016. Total pension plan
expense was $43,071 and $43,167 for 2017 and 2016, respectively.

See independent auditors’ report.
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COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016

NOTE 9- DONATED GOODS

The Organization receives gifts in kind, such as materials, supplies and services, from private donors and
corporate entities. Gifts in kind are recorded as revenue and inventory or program expense at the fair market value at
the time the donations are received. The value of the gifts in kind received were $18,552 and $75,615 for the years
ended December 31,2017 and 2016, respectively.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the balance sheet date and through June 22,
2018, the date these financial statements were available to be issued, and has determined that no items require
disclosure.
NOTE 11 - RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain reclassifications have been made to the December 31, 2016 financial statements to conform with the

December 31, 2017 financial statement presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on net income previously
reported.

See independent auditors’ report.
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SAM -Search Res_ults
List of records matching your search for :

Record Status: Active
DUNS Num b_erﬂ8960398

Expiration Date: 01/22/2020  Has Active Exclusion?: No Debt Subject to Offset?: No

Address: 1120 MONROE AVE NW STE 220
City: GRAND RAPIDS State/Province: MICHIGAN
ZIP Code: 49503-1038 Country: UNITED STATES

ENTITY ICOMMUNITY REBUILDERS Status: Active
DUNS: 948960398 +4: CAGE Code: 53YR8 DoDAAC:

May 07, 2019 12:07 PM https://www.sam.gov
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

hla._ CGCertibioed I u b L« A C Coun ol an oS

Board of Directors
Community Rebuilders
Grand Rapids, Michigan

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Community Rebuilders (a nonprofit organization), which are comprised of the statement of financial
position as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated June 22, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered
Community Rebuilders’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the effectiveness of
Community Rebuilders’ internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Rebuilders’ financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
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opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control

and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

DOLINKA, VANNOORD & COMPANY, PLLP

e, YiThd 86, /27

Certified Public Accountants
Grand Rapids, Michigan

June 22,2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM; INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Community Rebuilders
Grand Rapids, Michigan

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Rebuilders’ compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Community Rebuilders’ major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2017. Community Rebuilders’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community
Rebuilders’ major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Rebuilders’ compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community
Rebuilders’ compliance,
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Rebuilders complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs identified for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Rebuilders is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Community Rebuilders’
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community
Rebuilders’ internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant dcficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of Community Rebuilders as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 and have issued our report thereon dated June 22, 2018, which
contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements, The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the {inancial statements and certain additional procedures,
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including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,
DOLINKA, VANNOORD & COMPANY, PLLP

Ik, Vi Trd 002, /217

Certified Public Accountants
Grand Rapids, Michigan

June 22,2018



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Approved Passed
Federal and Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA Awards Through to
Program Title/Project Number Number Amount Subrecipients  Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Continuum of Care
LOFT Supportive Services:
MI-0315L5F-061404 14.267 $ 118,824 $ 8,438
MI-0315L5F-061505 14.267 $ 123,748 108,167
Total LOFT Supportive Services $ 116,605
HEROS Supportive Services:
MI-03451.5F-061403 14,267 $ 125,180 $ 19,058
MI-03451L.5F-061504 14.267 $ 130,265 90,714
Total HEROS Supportive Services $ 109,772
Housing Solutions:
M1-0412L5F-061502 14267 § 528,547 $ 437,002
MI-0412L5F-061603 14.267 § 528,547 78,107
Total Housing Solutions $ 515,109
Keys First:
MI-0415L5F-061502 14.267 $ 840,930 $ 248,014 $ 709,808
M1-0415L5F-061603 14.267 § 840,930 - 150,738
Total Keys First $ 248,014 $ 860,546
Youth RRH Collaborative:
MI-0505L5F-061500 14.267 § 782,976 $ 188,227 $ 775,252
MI-0505L5F-061601 14.267 5 782976 - 145,657
Total Youth RRH Collaborative $ 188,227 $ 920,909
Passed - Through Kent County
Shelter Plus Care Program - TRA:
MI-01731.SF-061508 14.267 § 872,114 $ 462,381
MI-0173L5F-061609 14.267 $ 872,114 401,523
Total Shelter Plus Care Program - TRA $ 863,904
Shelter Plus Care Program - SRA:
M1-0174L5F-061508 14.267 $ 419,309 $ 190,023
M1-0) 74L5F-061609 14.267 5 419,309 210,663
Total Shelter Plus Care Program - SRA $ 400,686
Total Continuumof Care $ 436,241 $ 3,787,531




COMMUNITY REBUILDERS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Approved Passed
Federal and Pass Through Grantor/ CFDA Awards Through to
Program Title/Project Number Number Amount Subrecipients  Expenditures
U.S. Department of Housing and Urbhan Development (continued)
Passed - Through Kent County
Home Investment Partnerships Program
CDBG- Community Development
Block Grant 14239  § 900,000 $ 80,855
Total US. Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 436,241 $ 3,868,386
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
Veteran Heights - Per Diem Supportive Services:
07-46-MI 64024 § 501,401 $ 303,820
07-46-M1 64.024 § 501,401 111,223
Total Veteran Heights - Per Diem Supportive Services 3 415,043
Supportive Services for Veteran's Famlies:
14-M1-223 64033 § 383,750 $ 290,683
14-M1-223 64033 § 379,950 92,994
Total Supportive Services for Veteran's Families $ 383,677
Total U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs $ 798,720
Passed - Through Michigan Department of Community Health
Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids
20170325 14,241 $§ 153,256 $ 103,469
20180158 14.241 $ 155,000 33,465
Total Housing Opportunities for
Persons with Aids b 136,934
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 436,241 $ 4,804,040




COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of Community Rebuilders under programs of the federal government for the year ended
December 31, 2017, The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Rebuilders, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Community Rebuilders.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein

certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Community Rebuilders has elected to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect cost rate as allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.



COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

SECTION [- SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of Auditors' Report Issued
Internal controls over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiencies identified not considered

to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)?
Identification of Major Programs

CFDA Number

14.267

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Unmodified

yes X no

yes X none reported

yes X no

yes X no

yes X none reported
Unmodified

yes X no

Name of Federal Program or Clus ter

Continuum of Care

5750000

X yes no




COMMUNITY REBUILDERS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None

SECTION Il - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None

SECTION IV - SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

None
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ENDING HOMELESSNESS o e e

August 23, 2019

Ref: CoC Funding Application Question 12b

Community Rebuilders was monitored by HUD in June of 2019.
However, we have not yet received the monitoring report. For that
reason we are attaching our most recent monitoring by an entity other
than HUD, The Salvation Army Emergency Shelter Program. Please see
attached letter and monitoring report. Thank you.

1

Anna Diaz
Chief Operating Officer




DOING
THE MOST
GOOLD

June 1%, 2019

Vera Beech

Commiunity Rabuilders
733 Bridge St

Grand Rapids, Mi 49503

RE: Ernergency Sheiter Program Monitoring
DearVerz:

On May 3, The Salvation Army Emergency Shelter Program (ESP) performed a
roUdine onsite nonitaring visit of the following Salvation Army Emergency
Sheiter Program grant:

20190094-00 — Community Rebuilders

Frciorn
the report 's @ completed Monitoring Guide along with any notes/comments, At

15 9y of the completad monitoring report for your records. Within

this tiine, there is no follow-up action required.

Questions can be directed to Erily O’Brien at 248-798-8945,

o “ o e ky (o lome o
Ernily O'Bridh
The Salvation Army
MDHHS Emergency Shelter Program Manager, Regions 4,5,7

16130 Noehlowd e
Souchlield, M1 48075
(2981 4345500
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ESP Monitoring Guide
03/2019

Michigan Department of Health and Human Services
Emergency Shelter Program

MONITORING GUIDE
SHELTER PROVIDER

Organization Name

Communlfy Rebuild_(;r‘s Housing Connection Center (HCC)

Contract #

20190094-00

Operating Year

s

Monitoring Comoleted By

Emiiy O'Brien

Datels) of Monitoring

May 37, 2019

AM PARTICIPANTS

1. Do he prograr: reco, ds document that househalds inet the eligibility criteria that is

omllrled inthe IV Iemorandum of Agreement?

x [

Yes

DeSLﬂu‘. e 3asis e ‘an--xd.nun.

Each programi record included the Emergency Shelter Program Applicant Self-Certification of Homelessness form.
This is signec and d N2 agplicant 2n2 the Housing Resource Specialist.

[N
oy i

2. Doz the sheltar srovider have 2 Refusal Polmy‘ that aligns with what is outlined in the = 0 l:’
Wiernoranaum of Agreement? Please state current Refusal Policy being practiced.
' : g =R Yes No N/A

a0 of Ay refusals.

2Sis o0 Corne
A houser\old may
else i s

housa™wa |
MLE

1sion:

he de'ned only |ftqe hou:nhold had been dlsruptwe violent or has put themselves or sameone

, thc visitor is able to continue their stay with the
igain, further action may be required.

aleer diversion for

R T
AGw (NS 15 aone. |

)~' QgﬁrV¥\/
» nunity Rebuilders and throughout the visitor's stay at the
BEg 2L OU L 3P0TIaube ey aSa Lha visiior aboul other alternative housing options. An example of this
verc you stayed las igng with if that friend knew you would he housed quickly?”
LStaff also may praziice mediation if requested by the visitor.

The Salvation Army - Social Services of Kent

may .

Lan you
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4. Ave program pardicipanis coming from the ‘(ar‘gei population identified to be served,
i.zomen, worien and children, youdt eLc

X

Yes

N

No N/A

o the 3
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‘or Conclusion:
ebutlders Housing Connection Center serves men, women and families. The HCC is able to

accammaodate households of any composition (i.e. single dad with children, single mom with children, a couple with
chilaren, a couple. individual),
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5. Do program records indicate that households did not exceed the ninety (90) night X [:] E]
limitation ofsray? Yes No N/A

Describe the Basis for r Conclusion:
Progran records indicate that the households did not exceed the ninety-night limitation of stay. The average length

of Stc. is |°S> than 65 dmyS

6. Do program rtcurds document that nousehotds had a VI-SPDAT assessment X [:] D
compoleted that 1ol|0w> the pruceclure ofthe Iocal Coordmated Entry System? Yes No N/A

| Describe the Basis for Conclusion:
The Vi-SPDAT is conducted over the phene at HAP through Kent County’s Coordinated Entry System. Once the VI-
SPDAT has beern completed, HAP will place the household on the community’s prioritization list. Community
i Rebuiiders HCT stat works with HAP staff to ensure the most appropriate housing intervention is occurring with all

S nousenclds.
L7 Do prograrm cecords documant that b .>E‘hO|(iS had VI SPDAT assessment | ] EI
‘ : ; fi Yes No N/A

o mronths nrior to ine date of |

*.Fw; at HCL are tramed on the VI-SPDAT for when, in very

| iar nis g ovel six months of the date of intake,
i o 0N i f r_r_aTservices consistent |
% Viam e provided for X ] (]
Boheranid rehou : Yes No N/A
A= 2 - n |
[ Prose: tas s Sas 5 et LA
Vhe s : o _sing > permanent housing intervention range, Community
Reb. services are still provided to the household. This may look
diffe. = ‘ i Vaddolroecay Dnoanlnly Rebuilders staff refer households to community
reso 20 S anheusing every Wednesday. This is an opportunity far past visitors to
5 51007 i1 HOT m( aie sate, affq@_a_ble housing.
D L U BTG e neics dre efective of case X ] ]
. R T SlPIE N VRN . Yes No N/A
[ oes u <
[ S = Lpoceatience into the Community Rebuilders HCC. The Housing

e nouseheid s linked to, records the visitor's case plan(s) and case
dewe wisitor file upan exit
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03/2019
10. Do ihe program records indicate that discharge plans were documented for X |:| D
households exiting the shelter when able? Yes No N/A

Describe the Basis for Conclusigl_n
The discharge plans are recorded within the visitor goals, case notes and in the HMIS Exit Assessment.

B. SERVICE COGRDINATION

1. Are the type and level of activities with the HARA in the geographic area documented
P ana e e . X O O

and consistent with those outlined in the Memarandum of Agreement? Please list all
Yes No N/A

l coordinated acuvmes _
Descrivz che Gesis 7 or LE—’mm n - R
Commur‘.itv Rebui C'“ has a very strong relationship with Kent County’s HARA, The Salvation Army ~ Social Services
wlds who are saeking housing services contact HAP. If there is an opening at the

Cof Keni County (RAR), House
 Community detunders kGG, the househola will compiete the VI-SPDAT, be placed on the prioritization list,

| connect anity housing rescurce and will begin their stay at the Community Rebuilders HCC.

L2, stne proviri:‘e] an acvive rmeEmner af th ocal Continuum of Care (CoC)/Local Planning | 5 !———] D
Bodw (LP3 ) in tne gzographic area and !“xave attended ai least 75% of CoC/LPB Yes No N/A
Teer in the ast contract year?

o8 and s a very active member.

"ngr_} Drrmitd

. L} '] T
= = = T
HE
Yes No N/A
[ ] |
h ; er adheres with the Minimum Standards for Emergency Shelter,
Bt v de hours o aonvaticn seven 17) days 3 weak from X D El
7 Yes No N/A
T
, e wsitors teeenty-four hours a day, seven days a week.
3. 2ULY SNQICET DPETELE 35 2 10w darrier racmty to ensure that
Paccese o services as outlined in the Memorandum of D I:]
g jmnc/urdsfsr Emergency Shelter? | Yes No N/A
|
hie Girs ; cliciivgie 2oswe that individuals have equal access to
e o w oy conzed of irmmediate shelter as long as the
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03/2019
4 Were a minimum of two (2) meals made available to individuals (supper meal in the DX D D
evemng and a breakfast meal in the morning)? Yes No N/A

Describe the Basis for Conclusion:
Food is pravided for breakfast, lunch and dinner to all visitors staying in the Community Rebuilders HCC. If a
household would like to provide their own food, there is storage available for that as well.

D.

"1. Doesa éa_rﬁnle-}jf reimbursement requests indicate that expenditures were for | < n n
e|1g|bl\o costs and supborted by adeguate source documentation (daily sign-in sheets, | » N N/A
MSE o . es 0

| Descrily-

| The momhl\/ reimbursement requests indicate that expendwtures were for eligible costs and supported by adequate
documzatas it sheets align with the ART report ard reimbursement request on a regular basis. If

core2 e pesaad (tay arasubetititnd ina tm”w.nlanner
T ) ==a S . |
S Mel he e noale suomit timely reimbursement request for each billing cycle K D [:I
1K consise i che aracess nm s outlined in the Memorandum of Agreement? | Yes No N/A
| FELOT 3 ol

2 oner before the 10™ of each month,

3n aernate Gilling plan in the event that the regular 4 D D
sae end SUbMIR renbucsement request far any

| Severa: siei mermue s ave aole to suomit ¢ 12 billing on behalf of the regular designated staff member if needed,

Lo sheiter prJvider will D El
A 4 X

saocests wall pe submitied in 3 consistent manner durin
® Yes No N/A

va prioe e ermoleyment or working with X L__] D
| Yes No N/A

> chatks prior to emgloyment

Lide Duasactivn Du s s @ low bandier, judgment free environment for
m Kent County o work ciligently on achieving housing goals Staff are
vites arassavrces that help support households seeking housing in the

od aloinis time
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

Before Starting the Project Application

To ensure that the Project Application is completed accurately, ALL
project applicants should review the following information BEFORE
beginning the application.

Things to Remember:

- Additional training resources can be found on the HUD Exchange at

https:/mww.hudexchange.info/e-snaps/guides/coc-program-competition-resources/

- Program policy questions and problems refated to completing the application in e-snaps may

be directed to HUD via the HUD Exchange Ask A Question.

- Project applicants are required to have a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number

and an active registration in the Central Contractor Registration (CCR)/System for Award

Management (SAM) in order to apply for funding under the Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 Continuum of

ﬁ%re (CoC) Program Competition. For more information see FY 2019 CoC Program Competition
FA.

- To ensure that applications are considered for funding, applicants should read all sections of

the FY 2019 CoC Program NOFA and the FY 2019 General Section NOFA.

- Detailed instructions can be found on the left menu within e-snaps. They contain more

comprehensive instructions and so should be used in tandem with navigational guides, which

are also found on the HUD Exchange.

- New projects may only be submitted as either Reallocated, Bonus Projects, Reallocated +

Bonus or DV Bonus. These funding methods are determined in collaboration with local CoC and

it is critical that applicants indicate the correct funding method. Project applicants must

communicate with their CoC to make sure that the CoC submissions reflect the same funding

method.

- Before completing the project application, all project applicants must complete or update (as

applicable) the Project Applicant Profile in e-snaps, particularly the Authorized Representative

and Alternate Representative forms as HUD uses this information to contact you if additional

information is required (e.g., allowable technical deficiency).

- HUD reserves the right to reduce or reject any new project that fails to adhere to (24 CFR part

578 and application requirements set forth in FY 2019 CoC Program Competition NOFA.

New Project Application FY2019 Page 1 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

1A. SF-424 Application Type

1. Type of Submission:

2. Type of Application: New Project Application
If Revision, select appropriate letter(s):
If "Other", specify:

3. Date Received: 08/23/2019

4. Applicant Identifier:
5a. Federal Entity Identifier:
6. Date Received by State:
7. State Application Identifier:

New Project Application FY2019 Page 2 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527
1B. SF-424 Legal Applicant
8. Applicant
a. Legal Name: Community Rebuilders
b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number 38-3094108
(EIN/TIN):
‘ c. Organizational DUNS:l 948960398 PLUS 4:
d. Address
Street 1: 1120 Monroe NW, Suite 220
Street 2:
City: Grand Rapids
County: Kent
State: Michigan
Country: United States
Zip / Postal Code: 49503
e. Organizational Unit (optional)
Department Name:
Division Name:
f. Name and contact information of person to
be
contacted on matters involving this
application
Prefix: Ms.
First Name: Anna
Middle Name:
Last Name: Diaz
Suffix:
Title: Chief Operating Officer
Organizational Affiliation: Community Rebuilders
Telephone Number: (616) 458-5102
New Project Application FY2019 Page 3 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

Extension: 122
Fax Number: (616) 458-8788
Email: adiaz@communityrebuilders.org

New Project Application FY2019 Page 4 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

1C. SF-424 Application Details

9. Type of Applicant: M. Nonprofit with 501C3 IRS Status

10. Name of Federal Agency: Department of Housing and Urban Development

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance CoC Program
Title:

CFDA Number: 14.267

12. Funding Opportunity Number: FR-6300-N-25

Title: Continuum of Care Homeless Assistance
Competition

13. Competition Identification Number:
Title:

[ New Project Application FY2019 Page 5 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

1D. SF-424 Congressional District(s)

14. Area(s) affected by the project (state(s) Michigan
only):
(for multiple selections hold CTRL key)

15. Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project: LOFT 2

16. Congressional District(s):
a. Applicant: MI-003, MI-002

b. Project: MI-003, MI-002
(for multiple selections hold CTRL key)

17. Proposed Project
a. Start Date: 02/01/2020
b. End Date: 01/31/2021

18. Estimated Funding ($)
a. Federal:

b. Applicant:

c. State:

d. Local:

e. Other:

f. Program Income:

g. Total:

New Project Application FY2019 Page 6 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders
Project: LOFT 2

948960398

175527

1E. SF-424 Compliance

19. Is the Application Subject to Review By a. Yes
State Executive Order 12372 Process?

If "YES", enter the date this application was 08/14/2019
made available to the State for review:

20. Is the Applicant delinquent on any Federal No
debt?

If "YES," provide an explanation:

L New Project Application FY2019 Page 7
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

1F. SF-424 Declaration

By signing and submitting this application, | certify (1) to the statements
contained in the list of certifications** and (2) that the statements herein
are true, complete, and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also
provide the required assurances** and agree to comply with any resulting
terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or
fraudulent statements or claims may subject me to criminal, civil, or
administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

| AGREE: | X

21. Authorized Representative
Prefix: Mrs.
First Name: Vera
Middle Name: Jean
Last Name: Beech
Suffix:
Title: Executive Director

Telephone Number: (616) 458-5102
(Format: 123-456-7890)

Fax Number: (616) 458-8788
(Format: 123-456-7890)

Email: vbeech@communityrebuilders.org
Signature of Authorized Representative: Considered signed upon submission in e-snaps.
Date Signed: 08/23/2019
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders
Project: LOFT 2

948960398

175527

1G. HUD 2880

Applicant/Recipient Disclosure/Update Report - form HUD-2880
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
OMB Approval No. 2506-0214 (exp.02/28/2022)

Applicant/Recipient Information

1. Applicant/Recipient Name, Address, and Phone

Agency Legal Name:
Prefix:

First Name:

Middle Name:

Last Name:

Suffix:

Title:

Organizational Affiliation:
Telephone Number:
Extension:

Email:

City:

County:

State:

Country:

Zip/Postal Code:

2. Employer ID Number (EIN):

3. HUD Program:

Community Rebuilders
Mrs.

Vera

Jean

Beech

Executive Director
Community Rebuilders
(616) 458-5102

vbeech@communityrebuilders.org
Grand Rapids

Kent

Michigan

United States

49503

38-3094108

Continuum of Care Program

4. Amount of HUD Assistance $306,593.00
Requested/Received:
New Project Application FY2019 ‘ Page 9 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders
Project: LOFT 2

948960398
175527

(Requested amounts will be automatically entered within applications)

5. State the name and location (street address, City and State) of the
project or activity.

Refer to project name, addresses and CoC Project Identifying Number (PIN) entered into the

attached project application.

Part | Threshold Determinations

1. Are you applying for assistance fora Yes

specific project or activity?
(For further information, see 24 CFR Sec. 4.3).

2. Have you received or do you expect to Yes

receive assistance within the jurisdiction of
the Department (HUD), involving the project
or activity in this application, in excess of
$200,000 during this fiscal year (Oct. 1 - Sep.
30)? For further information, see 24 CFR Sec.

4.9.

Part Il Other Government Assistance Provided or Requested/Expected
Sources and Use of Funds

Such assistance includes, but is not limited to, any grant, loan, subsidy, guarantee, insurance,

payment, credit, or tax benefit.

Department/Local Agency Name and Address

Type of Assistance

Amount
Requested /
Provided

Expected Uses of the Funds

NA

NA

NA

Note: If additional sources of Government Assistance, please use the
"Other Attachments" screen of the project applicant profile.

Part lll Interested Parties

New Project Application FY2019
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

You must disclose:
1. All developers, contractors, or consultants involved in the application for the assistance or in
the planning, development, or implementation of the project or activity and

2. any other person who has a financial interest in the project or activity for which the
assistance is sought that exceeds $50,000 or 10 percent of the assistance (whichever is lower).

Alphabetical list of all persons with a Social Security No. Type of Financlal Interest | Financial Interest

reportable financial interest in the project or| or Employee ID No. Participation in Project/Activity | in Project/Activity
(For individuals,agclsrme last name first) @l -

NA NA NA $0.00 0%
NA
NA
NA
NA

Note: If there are no other people included, write NA in the boxes.

Certification

Warning: If you knowingly make a false statement on this form, you may be subject to civil or
criminal penalties under Section 1001 of Title 18 of the United States Code. In addition, any
person who knowingly and materially violates any required disclosures of information, including
int?ntional nondisclosure, is subject to civil money penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each
violation.

| certify that the information provided on this form and in any accompanying documentation is
true and accurate. | acknowledge that making, presenting, submitting, or causing to be
submitted a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement, representation, or certification may result in
criminal, civil, and/or administrative sanctions, including fines, penalties, and imprisonment.

| AGREE: | X

Name / Title of Authorized Official: Vera Beech, Executive Director

Signature of Authorized Official: Considered signed upon submission in e-snaps.

Date Signed: 08/23/2019
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders
Project: LOFT 2

948960398
175527

1H. HUD 50070

HUD 50070 Certification for a Drug Free Workplace

Applicant Name: Community Rebuilders

Program/Activity Receiving Federal Grant CoC Program

Funding:

Acting on behalf of the above named Applicant as its Authorized Official, |
make the following certifications and agreements to the Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) regarding the sites listed below:

| certify that the above named Applicant will or will continue to
provide a drug-free workplace by:

Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful
manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a
controlled substance is prohibited in the Applicant's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees
for violation of such prohibition.

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after
receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2) from an amé)loyae or
otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers
of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer or other designee on whose grant
activity the convicted employee was working, unless the
Federalagency has designated a central point for the receipt of
such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s)
of each affected grant;

Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to
inform employees ---

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace

(2) The Applicant's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee
assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug
abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of
receiving notice under subparagraph d.(2), with respect to any
employee who is so convicted ---

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an
employee, up to and including termination, consistent with the
requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a
drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for
such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in
the performance of the grant be given a copy of the statement
required by paragraph a.;

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drugfree
workplace through implementation of paragraphs a. thru f.

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph
a. that, as a condition of employment under the grant, the
employee will -

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a
violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace
no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

| certify that the information provided on this

2. Sites for Work Performance.

The Applicant shall list (on separate pages) the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the HUD funding of the program/activity shown above: Place of Performance
shall include the street address, city, county, State, and zip code. Identify each sheet with the
Applicant name and address and the program/activity receiving grant funding.)

Workplaces, including addresses, entered in the attached project application.

Refer to addresses entered into the attached project application.

form and in any accompanying

X

New Project Application FY2019
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders
Project: LOFT 2

948960398
175527

documentation is true and accurate. |
acknowledge that making, presenting,
submitting, or causing to be submitted a
false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement,
representation, or certification may result in
criminal, civil, and/or administrative
sanctions, including fines, penalties, and
imprisonment.

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may result in criminal
and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Authorized Representative

Prefix:

First Name:
Middie Name
Last Name:
Suffix:

Title:

Telephone Number:
(Format: 123-456-7890)

Fax Number:
(Format: 123-456-7890)

Email:
Signature of Authorized Representative:
Date Signed:

Mrs.
Vera
Jean
Beech

Executive Director
(616) 458-5102

(616) 458-8788

vbeech@communityrebuilders.org
Considered signed upon submission in e-snaps.
08/23/2019

New Project Application FY2019
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief,
that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on
behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress
in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement.

2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its
instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be
included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including
subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly. This certification is a material representation of fact
upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or
entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S.
Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

Statement for Loan Guarantees and Loan Insurance

The undersigned states, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief,
that:

If any funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing
or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this commitment providing for the
United States to insure or guarantee a loan, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying
Activities," in accordance with its instructions. Submission of this
statement is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

the required statement shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

| hereby certify that all the information stated | X
herein, as well as any information provided in
the accompaniment herewith, is true and
accurate:

Warning: HUD will prosecute false claims and statements. Conviction may
resuit in criminal and/or civil penalties. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31
U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Applicant’s Organization: Community Rebuilders
Name / Title of Authorized Official: Vera Beech, Executive Director
Signature of Authorized Official: Considered signed upon submission in e-snaps.

Date Signed: 08/23/2019
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

1J. SF-LLL

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C.
13562.
Approved by OMB0348-0046

HUD requires a new SF-LLL submitted with each annual CoC competition and completing this
screen fulfills this requirement.

Answer “Yes” if your organization is engaged in lobbying associated with the CoC Program and
answer the questions as they appear next on this screen. The requirement related to lobbying
as explained in the SF-LLL instructions states: “The filing of a form is required for each payment
or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence
an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal
action.”

Answer “No” if your organization is NOT engaged in lobbying.

Does the recipient or subrecipient of this CoC No
grant participate in federal lobbying activities
(lobbying a federal administration or
congress) in connection with the CoC
Program?

Legal Name: Community Rebuilders

Street 1: 1120 Monroe NW, Suite 220
Street 2:

City: Grand Rapids
County: Kent

State: Michigan
Country: United States
Zip / Postal Code: 49503

11. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31
U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material
representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above
when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is
required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be available for
public inspection. Any person who fails to file the required disclosure
shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more
than $100,000 for each such failure.

| certify that this information is true and | X
complete.
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders
Project: LOFT 2

948960398
175527

Authorized Representative

Prefix:

First Name:
Middle Name:
Last Name:
Suffix:

Title:

Telephone Number:
(Format: 123-456-7890)

Fax Number:
(Format: 123-456-7890)

Email:
Signature of Authorized Representative:
Date Signed:

Mrs.
Vera
Jean
Beech

Executive Director
(616) 458-5102

(616) 458-8788

vbeech@communityrebuilders.org
Considered signed upon submission in e-snaps.
08/23/2019

| New Project Application FY2019
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

2A. Project Subrecipients

This form lists the subrecipient organization(s) for the project. To add a
subrecipient, select the icon. To view or update subrecipient
information already listed, select the view option.

Total Expected Sub-Awards:

Organization Type Sub-
Award
Amount

This list contains no items
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Applicant: Community Rebuilders 948960398
Project: LOFT 2 175527

2B. Experience of Applicant, Subrecipient(s), and
Other Partners

1. Describe the experience of the applicant and potential subrecipients (if
any), in effectively utilizing federal funds and performing the activities
proposed in the application, given funding and time limitations.

Community Rebuilder has a 25 year history of managing federal funds.
Community Rebuilders has a robust system in place for efficiently distributing
funds and managing federally funded projects. Effective staffing, policies &
procedures, and the ability to translate federal rules and regulations into
practice is a skill the organization is praised for by federal agencies.
Performance on federally funded projects under the U.S. Department of Veteran
Affairs has identified our projects as “exceptional: in their review of our
performance. Financial management, grant management, reporting and audit
compliance as well as collaboration and transparency are keys to our success
at managing federal funds. The organization has been publicly praised by HUD
to Local CoC steering council members in which after an audit HUD invited the
steering council, shared our success and encouraged other grantees to learn
from our example and processes.

2. Describe the experience of the applicant and potential subrecipients (if
any) in leveraging other Federal, State, local, and private sector funds.

Community Rebuilders’ solid history of experience administering programs is
due in part to its ability to leverage federal, state, local, and private sector funds.
A great example of our success leveraging funds has been our ability over the
past 10 years to work with HUD to amend some of our renewal contracts.
Several amendments were made at our request to shift dollars from Supportive
Services to Leasing Assistance. These amendments were possible because of
the linkages and leveraging of federal, state, local and private sector funds to
pay for supportive service costs. Another example of our commitment and
ability to leverage funds is evidenced in our Shelter Plus Care Project. Each
year in this project alone Community Rebuilders' partner agencies provides
between $700,000.00 and one million dollars in services as matching funds to
Community Rebuilders each year. This also demonstrates a solid history of
quality communication and coordination with other providers within Kent
County. Community Rebuilders has a solid reputation of spending out and
meeting all project deliverables.

Community Rebuilder has a 25 year history of managing federal funds.
Community Rebuilders has a robust system in place for efficiently distributing
funds and managing federally funded projects. Effective staffing, policies &
procedures, and the ability to translate federal rules and regulations into
practice is a skill the organization is praised for by federal agencies.
Performance on federally funded projects under the U.S. Department of Veteran
Affairs has identified our projects as “exceptional: in their review of our
performance. Financial management, grant management, reporting and audit
compliance as well as collaboration and transparency are keys to our success
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at managing federal funds. The organization has been publicly praised by HUD
to Local CoC steering council members in which after an audit HUD invited the
steering council, shared our success and encouraged other grantees to learn
from our example and processes.

3. Describe the basic organization and management structure of the
applicant and subrecipients (if any). Include evidence of internal and
external coordination and an adequate financial accounting system.

Community Rebuilders places a heavy emphasis on accountability and
transparency including reporting requirements related to the use of funds and
maintenance of client level and program services and expense data.
Community Rebuilders follows Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). The financial records of Community Rebuilders are audited by a
Certified Public Accounting firm annually. Community Rebuilders has a robust
system of controls in place and has demonstrated history of integrity in financial
records and reports generating trust with stakeholders. The system of controls
assures appropriate authorization, recording and accountability of assets.
Employees share the responsibility for maintaining and complying with these
controls and compliance controls ensure they are not circumvented. The
organization has clearly stated procedures for handling each area, including
system of checks and balances in which no financial transaction is handled by
only one person from beginning to end. The Board and Executive Director share
the responsibility for setting a tone and standard of accountability and
conscientiousness regarding the organization’s assets and responsibilities. We
have developed a system and infrastructure of collecting and reporting the
required information to our funding sources. We educate our consumers about
the reporting requirements when collecting data, assess the quality of the
information reported by employees and use the collected information effectively
to monitor and oversee each programs’ performance and financial processes
and procedures. For this project we will duplicate our fiscal control systems that
work to track and evaluate program compliance and spending goals in similar
HUD programs. Specifically, we utilize a system that tracks the category of
eligibility a person meets when served and the amount of assistance provided.
Employees track services in HMIS and on monthly activity logs, these logs are
then compared to logs kept by the Finance Department and are then approved
by the Program Manager. This process promotes the maintenance of adequate
program and fiscal records and files, including source documentation to support
program activities and all expenditures made under the terms of the grant
agreement as required. Community Rebuilders has solid experience and
demonstrated success in complying with all HUD procurement and auditing
requirements.

4a. Are there any unresolved monitoring or No

audit findings for any HUD grants(including

ESG) operated by the applicant or potential
subrecipients (if any)?
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3A. Project Detail

1a. CoC Number and Name: MI-506 - Grand Rapids, Wyoming/Kent County
CoC

1b. CoC Collaborative Applicant Name: Heart of West Michigan United Way
2. Project Name: LOFT 2
3. Project Status: Standard
4. Component Type: PH
4a. Will the PH project provide PSH or RRH? PSH

5. Does this project use one or more No
properties that have been conveyed through
the Title V process?

6. Is this new project application requesting No
to transition from eligible renewal project(s)
that were awarded to the same recipient and
fully eliminated through reallocation in the FY
2019 CoC Program Competition? (Section
I1.B.2. and Section lll.C.3.q. of the FY 2019
NOFA).

7. Under CoC Interim Rules, new grant | X
funding cannot replace state or local funds.
Can you confirm that this project application
for new CoC Program funding will not replace
state or local funds?

8. Does this project include Replacement No
Reserves?
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3B. Project Description

1. Provide a description that addresses the entire scope of the proposed
project.

Community Rebuilders is seeking an expansion to our currently funded LOFT
(Long Term Opportunities for Tenancy) project by adding 18 chronically
homeless dedicated beds. LOFT is a scattered site permanent housing project
dedicated to serve chronically homeless individuals. We know that chronically
homeless individuals face the greatest barriers to obtaining housing and
remaining housed long term. Using best practices such as a strengths based
housing first model, we ensure that this most vulnerable population is receiving
the most cost-effective intervention (housing) that serves as a foundation for
improved health and wellbeing. Leasing assistance and voluntary supportive
services are provided to chronically homeless individuals to help them establish
residential stability by increasing their income, benefits and self-determination.
Life Domain Rating Scale is used to measure improvement in health, wellbeing
and self-sufficiency. This tool allows us to see the effectiveness of the PSH
program through the eyes of the consumer. Outreach for eligible participants is
conducted throughout the community utilizing the community's coordinated
entry system and outreach teams. A core component to LOFT is the
community-based Housing Resource Specialist (HRS) support services model.
These HRS staff engage eligible participants through outreach activities on the
streets and in the local missions, further promoting access to the LOFT program
for those who are difficult to reach and have minimal contact with homeless
service providers. Our Housing Resource Specialist staff work with consumers
to quickly secure permanent housing in the community through the private
rental market and gain or increase income when possible. This is accomplished
through connection to benefits or working to increase earned income. All
avenues to increase income are explored including non-traditional employment.
Additionally, we have a SOAR trained HRS who can support consumers in the
application process for any benefits they may not be receiving. Community
Rebuilders has built a well facilitated coordination with local health providers,
including Mercy Health, Network 180 and Healthcare for Homeless Veterans, to
address the identified needs of consumers and to provide the option for the
support services the consumer’s desire. The recent PIT/HIC submission
indicated that the number of chronically homeless persons in our community
has increased from 102 persons in 2018 to 113 in 2019. The community's
housing prioritization list indicates there are 73 self-reported chronically
homeless persons awaiting a PSH resource. The addition of this funding in our
community could make a significant impact towards HUD's FY2019 priority of
ending homelessness for all persons by providing more PSH to end chronic
homelessness. We anticipate that at least 90% of consumers will maintain
permanent housing or exit to permanent housing and at least 80% of
consumers will increase their total income.

2. For each primary project location or structure in the project, enter the
number of days from the execution of the grant agreement that each of the
following milestones will occur as related to CoC Program funds
requested in this project application. If a milestone is not applicable, leave
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the associated fields blank. If the project has only one location or
structure, or no structures, complete only column A. If multiple
structures, complete one column for each structure.
Note: To expend funds within statutorily required deadlines, project applicants must be able to
begin assistance within 12 months of conditional award. The one exception is for applicants who
are conditionally awarded sponsor-based and project-based rental assistance. These
conditional award recipients will have 24 months to execute a grant agreement; however, HUD
encourages all recipients conditionally awarded funds to begin assistance within 12 months.
The estimated schedule should reflect these statutorily required deadlines.
Project Milestones Days from Days from Days from Days from
Execution Execution Execution Execution
of Grant Agreement | of Grant Agreement | of Grant Agreement | of Grant Agreement
A B c D
New project staff hired, or other project expenses 0
begin?
Participant enroliment in project begins? 30
Participants begin to occupy leased units or 60
structure(s), and supportive services begin?
Leased or rental assistance units or structure, and 180

supportive services near 100% capacity?

Closing on purchase of land, structure(s), or execution
of structure lease?

Rehabilitation started?

Rehabilitation completed?

New construction started?

New construction compieted?

3. Will your project participate ina CoC Yes

Coordinated Entry Process?

* 4. Please identify the project's specific population focus.
(Select ALL that apply)

Chronic Homeless

Domestic Violence

Veterans

Substance Abuse

Youth (under 25)

Mental lliness

Families

L ) B

HIV/AIDS

Other
(Click 'Save' to update)

I[N |

5. Housing First

a. Will the project quickly move participants Yes

into permanent housing
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b. Does the project ensure that participants are not screened out based on
the following items? Select all that apply.

Having too little or little income

Active or history of substance use

Having a criminal record with exceptions for state-mandated restrictions

History of victimization (e.g. domestic violence, sexual assault, childhood abuse)

None of the above

[ G| G| G 1| ]

c. Does the project ensure that participants are not terminated from the
program for the following reasons? Select all that apply.

Failure to participate in supportive services

Failure to make progress on a service plan

Loss of income or failure to improve income

Any other activity not covered in a lease agreement typically found for unassisted persons in the project’'s geographic area

None of the above

LB D) | ]

d. Will the project follow a "Housing First" Yes
approach?
(Click 'Save' to update)

6. If applicable, describe the proposed development activities and the
responsibilities that the applicant and potential subrecipients (if any) will
have in developing, operating, and maintaining the property.

7. Will participants be required to liveina No
particular structure, unit, or locality, at some
point during the period of participation?

8. Will more than 16 persons live in one No
structure?

Dedicated and DedicatedPLUS

A “100% Dedicated” project is a permanent supportive housing project
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that commits 100% of its beds to chronically homeless individuals and
families, according to NOFA Section IIl.3.b.

A “DedicatedPLUS” project is a permanent supportive housing project
where 100% of the beds are dedicated to serve individuals with disabilities
and families in which one adult or child has a disability, including
unaccompanied homeless youth, that at a minimum, meet ONE of the
following criteria according to NOFA Section 111.3.d:

(1) experiencing chronic homelessness as defined in 24 CFR 578.3;

(2) residing in a transitional housing project that will be eliminated and meets the definition of
chronically homeless in effect at the time in which the individual or family entered the transitional
housing project;

(3) residing in a place not meant for human habitation, emergency shelter, or safe haven; but
the individuals or families experiencing chronic homelessness as defined at 24 CFR 578.3 had
been admitted and enrolled in a permanent housing project within the last year and were unable
to maintain a housing placement;

(4) residing in transitional housing funded by a joint TH and PH-RRH component project and
who were experiencing chronic homelessness as defined at 24 CFR 578.3 prior to entering the
project;

(5)residing and has resided in a place not meant for human habitation, a safe haven, or
emergency shelter for at least 12 months in the last three years, but has not done so on four
separate occasions; or

(6) receiving assistance through a Department of Veterans Affairs(VA)-funded homeless
assistance program and met one of the above criteria at initial intake to the VA's homeless
assistance system.

A renewal project where 100 percent of the beds are dedicated in their current grant as
described in NOFA Section lll.LA.3.b. must either become DedicatedPLUS or remain 100%
Dedicated. If a renewal project currently has 100 percent of its beds dedicated to chronically
homeless individuals and families and elects to become a DedicatedPLUS project, the project
will be required to adhere to all fair housing requirements at 24 CFR 578.93. Any beds that the
applicant identifies in this application as being dedicated to chronically homeless individuals and
families in a DedicatedPLUS project must continue to operate in accordance with Section
lILA.3.b. Beds are identified on Screen 4B.

10. Indicate whether the project is “100% 100% Dedicated
Dedicated,” or “DedicatedPLUS,” according
to the information provided above.
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3C. Project Expansion Information

1. Is this New project application requestinga Yes
“Project Expansion” of an eligible renewal
project of the same component type?

Enter the PIN number (first 6 numbers of the grant number) and Project
Name for the renewal project application applying for renewal in this
year’s CoC Program Competition.

1a. Eligible Renewal Grant PIN Number: MI0315
1b. Eligible Renewal Grant Project Name: LOFT

2. Will this expansion project Increase the Yes
number of homeless persons served?

2a. Indicate how the project is proposing to "increase the number of
homeless persons served."

Current level of effort
# of persons served at a point-in-time "
# of units 1
# of beds 11
New effort
# of additional persons served at a point in time that this project will provide 18
# of additional units this project will provide 14
# of additional beds this project will provide 18

3. Will this Expansion Project bring additional No
supportive services to homeless persons?

4. Will this expansion project bring existing No
facilities up to government health and safety
standards?
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4A. Supportive Services for Participants

1. Applicants requesting funds to provide housing or services to children and youth, with or
without families, must establish policies and practices that are consistent with and do not restrict
the exercise of rights provided by subtitle B of title VII of the McKinney-Vento Act (42 U.S.C.
11431, et seq.), and other laws (e.g. Head Start, part C of the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act) relating to the provision of educational and related services to individuals and
families experiencing homelessness. Projects serving households with children or youth must
have a staff person that is designated to ensure children or youth are enrolled in school and
connected to the appropriate services within the community. Reminder: failure to comply with
federal education assurances may result in Federal sanctions and significantly reduce the
likelihood of receiving funding through the CoC Program Competition.

Please check the box that you acknowledge | X
you will be required to meet the above
requirements if you have any qualifying
participants.

2. Describe how participants will be assisted to obtain and remain in
permanent housing.

HRS provide strengths based housing first services to participants. Participants
and HRS develop individual housing plans that allow the participant housing of
their choice beginning with pre-tenancy planning and ends in the execution of a
lease. The project continues to offer leasing assistance, not rental assistance.
This allows Community Rebuilders to hold the lease for chronically homeless
participants who landlords have been reluctant to offer a lease to. The
participant then has a sublease with Community Rebuilders. Participant
complete an assessment to identify their housing history, past strengths and
barriers to housing. HQS are completed by the HRS and serve as a great
learning opportunity for participants to learn the legal obligations of their
landlord and understand their right to safe and decent housing. HRS services
promote housing stability including connection to mainstream benefits,
counseling, transportation assistance and educational assistance.

3. What specific plan does this project have to specifically coordinate and
integrate with other mainstream health, social services, and employment
programs for which program participants may be eligible?

Community Rebuilders has been partnering with the Employment Services
Collaborative for the last two years. This United Way funded collaboration
supports navigators and services with Goodwill Industries, Hope Network, The
Literacy Center of West Michigan, Jubilee Jobs, Women’s Resource Center, the
Hispanic Center of West Michigan and Disability Advocates of Kent County.
These service providers have provided on the job training, job coaching and
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training/educational opportunities for consumers in PSH projects. Additionally,
we have entered into agreements with Mixed Staffing and Border Foods, to
provide supported employment opportunities for Community Rebuilders’
participants, including those in PSH projects. Our Veteran Voices project
provides employment services, social/recreational opportunities and housing
stability supports for Veterans in PSH projects. Community Rebuilders has a
certified SOAR staff member, working with PSH participants to increase their
income and understand their employment options while receiving social security
disability benefits. Our team of certified Housing Resource Specialist also
facilitate voluntary educational groups on relevant employment topics. _
Currently, our Housing Resource Specialist staff work with consumers to gain or
increase income. This is accomplished through connections to benefits, or
working to increase earned income. All avenues to increase income are
explored including non-traditional employment. Consumers are assisted to
connect with local employment and rehabilitative services that meet their
specific needs.

4. For all supportive services available to participants, indicate who will
provide them and how often they will be provided.
Click 'Save' to update.

Supportive Services Provider Frequency

Assessment of Service Needs Applicant As needed

Assistance with Moving Costs Non-Partner As needed

Case Management Applicant Monthly

Child Care Non-Partner As needed

Education Services Applicant As needed

Employment Assistance and Job Training Applicant As needed

Food Applicant As needed

Housing Search and Counseling Services Applicant As needed

Legal Services Non-Partner As needed

Life Skills Training Applicant As needed

Mental Health Services Partner As needed

Outpatient Health Services Partner As needed

Outreach Services Applicant As needed

Substance Abuse Treatment Services Partner As needed

Transportation Applicant As needed

Utility Deposits Non-Partner As needed

5. Please identify whether the project will include the following activities:

5a. Transportation assistance to clients to Yes
attend mainstream
benefit appointments, employment training,
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or jobs?

5b. Regular follow-ups with participants to
ensure mainstream
benefits are received and renewed?

6. Will project participants have access to
SSI/SSDI technical assistance

provided by the applicant, a subrecipient, or
partner agency?

6a. Has the staff person providing the
technical assistance completed SOAR
training in the past 24 months.

Yes

Yes

Yes
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4B. Housing Type and Location

The following list summarizes each housing site in the project. To add a
housing site to the list, select the icon. To view or update a housing site
already listed, select the icon.

Total Units: 14
Total Beds: 18
Total Dedicated CH Beds: 18

Housing Type Housing Type (JOINT) Units Beds

Scattered-site apartments (... 14 18
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4B. Housing Type and Location Detail

1. Housing Type: Scattered-site apartments (including efficiencies)

2. Indicate the maximum number of units and beds available for project
participants at the selected housing site.

a. Units: 14
b. Beds: 18

3. How many beds of the total beds in “2b. 18
Beds” are dedicated to the chronically
homeless?

This includes both the “dedicated” and “prioritized” beds.

4. Address:

Project applicants must enter an address for all proposed and existing properties. If the location
is not yet known, enter the expected location of the housing units. For Scattered-site and Single-
family home housing, or for projects that have units at multiple locations, project applicants
should enter the address where the majority of beds will be located or where the majority of beds
are located as of the application submission. Where the project uses tenant-based rental
assistance in the RRH portion, or if the address for scattered-site or single-family homes housing
cannot be identified at the time of application, enter the address for the project’s administration
office. Projects serving victims of domestic violence, including human trafficking, must use a PO
Box or other anonymous address to ensure the safety of participants.

Street 1: 1120 Monroe Ave NW
Street 2: Suite 220
City: Grand Rapids
State: Michigan
ZIP Code: 49503

*5. Select the geographic area(s) associated with the address. For new
projects, select the area(s) expected to be covered.
(for multiple selections hold CTRL key)

269081 Kent County
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5A. Project Participants - Households
Households Table
Households with at Adult Households Households with Total
Least One Adult without Children Only Children
and One Child
Number of Households 2 12 14
Characteristics Persons in Adult Persons in Persons in Total
Households with at Households without Households with
Least One Adult Children Only Children
and One Child
Adults over age 24 1 10 11
Persons ages 18-24 1 2
Accompanied Children under age 18 4
Unaccompanied Children under age 18
Total Persons 6 12 0 18

Click Save to automatically calculate totals
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5B. Project Participants - Subpopulations
Persons in Households with at Least One Adult and One Child

Non- Persons
Chronlcall| Chronicall| Chronicall| Chronic Victims of not
y y y Substanc | Persons | Severely | Domestic | Physical | Developm | represent
Characteristics Homeless | Homeless | Homeless e with Mentally | Violence | Disability ental ed by
Non- Veterans | Veterans | Abuse | HIV/AIDS ]| Disability listed
Vetorans subpopul
ations
Adults over age 24 1
Persons ages 18-24 1
Children under age 18 4
Total Persons 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Click Save to automatically calculate totals
Persons in Households without Children
Non- Persons
Chronicall | Chronicall| Chronlcall| Chronic Victims of not
y y y Substanc | Persons | Severely | Domestic | Physical | Developm | represent
Characteristics Homeless | Homeless | Homeless e with Mentally | Violence | Disability ental ed b
Non- Veterans | Veterans | Abuse | HIV/IAIDS n Disability listed
Veterans subpopul
ations
Adults over age 24 10
Persons ages 18-24 2
Total Persons 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Click Save to automatically calculate totals
Persons in Households with Only Children
St Non- Persons
Chronicall|Chronicall| Chronicall| Chronic Victims of not
2l y y Substanc | Persons | Severely | Domestic | Physical Dwalurm represent
Characteristics Homeless | Homeless | Homeless e with Mentally | Violence | Disability enta ed by
Non- | Veterans | Veterans | Abuse | HIV/AIDS n Disability | listed
Veterans subpopul
ations
Accompanied Children
under age 18
Unaccompanied Children
under age 18
Total Persons 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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6A. Funding Request

1. Will it be feasible for the project to be Yes
under grant agreement by September 30,
20217

2. What type of CoC funding is this project CoC Bonus
applying for in the 2019 CoC Competition?

3. Does this project propose to allocate funds No
according to an indirect cost rate?

4. Select a grant term: 1 Year

* 5. Select the costs for which funding is
being requested:

Leased Units | X
Leased Structures

Rental Assistance

Supportive Services | X
Operating | X
HMIS | X

6. If awarded, will this project require an initial No
grant term greater than 12 months?
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6C. Leased Units

The following list summarizes the funds being requested for one or more

units leased for operating the projects. To add information to the list,

select the icon. To view or update information already listed, select the

icon.
Total Annual Assistance Requested: $132,072
Grant Term: 1 Year
Total Request for Grant Term: $132,072

Total Units:

14

FMR Area

Total Units Requested

Total Annual Assistance
Requested

Total Budget Requested

Ml - Grand Rapids...

14

$132,072

$132,072
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Leased Units Budget Detail

Instructions:

Metropalitan or non-metropolitan fair market rent area: This is a required field. Select the FY
2016 FMR area in which the project is located. The list is sorted by state abbreviation. The
selected FMR area will be used to populate the rent for each unit in the FMR Area column in the
chart below. The FMRs are available online at http://www.huduser.org/portal/datasets/fmr.html.

Size of Units: Unit size is defined by the number of distinct bedrooms and not by the number of
distinct beds.

# of units: This is a required field. For each unit size, enter the number of units for which
funding is being requested.

FMR: These fields are populated with the FY 2016 FMRs based on the FMR area selected by
the applicant. They serve as a reference and upper limit for the amounts entered in the HUD
Paid Rents column.

HUD Paid Rents: This is a required field. For each unit size, enter the rent to be paid by the
CoC program grant. This rent can be equal to or below the FMR amount in the previous column.
Once funds are awarded recipients must document compliance with the rent reasonable
requirement in 24 CFR 578.49.

12 Months: These fields are populated with the value 12 to calculate the annual rent request.
The total request for this budget will calculate based on the grant term selected on Screen “6A.
Funding Request.”

Total Request: This column populates with the total calculated amount from each row.

Total Units and Annual Assistance Requested: The fields in this row are automatically
calculated based on the total number of units and the sum of the total requests per unit size per
year.

Grant Term: This field is populated with the grant term selected on the "Funding Request"
screen and will be read only.

Total Request for Grant Term: This field is calculated based on the total annual assistance
requested multiplied by the grant term.

All total fields will be calculated once the required field has been completed and saved.

Additional Resources can be found at the HUD Exchange:
https://www.hudexchange.info/e-snaps/guides/coc-program-competition-resources

In the chart below, enter the appropriate values in the "Number of units"
and "HUD Paid Rent" fields.

Metropolitan or non-metropolitan MI - Grand Rapids-Wyoming, Ml HUD Metro
fair market rent area: FMR Area (2608199999)

Leased Units Annual Budget
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Size of Units Number of FMR HUD Paid Rent 12 months Total request
units (Applicant) (Applicant) (Applicant)
(Applicant)
SRO $440 12 $0
0 Bedroom $587 12 $0
1 Bedroom 12 $713 $713 12 $102,672
2 Bedroom $878 12 $0
3 Bedroom 2 $1,225 $1,225 12 $29,400
4 Bedroom $1,383 12 $0
5 Bedroom $1,590 12 $0
6 Bedroom $1,798 12 $0
7 Bedroom $2,005 12 $0
8 Bedroom $2,213 12 $0
9 Bedroom $2,420 12 $0
Total units and annual assistance 14 $132,072
requested:
Grant term: 1 Year
Total request for grant term: $132,072

Click the 'Save' button to automatically calculate totals.
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6F. Supportive Services Budget

A quantity AND description must be entered for each requested cost.

Eligible Costs Quantity AND Description Annual Assistance
(max 400 characters) Requested

1. Assessment of Service Needs assessment of service needs $6,333

2. Assistance with Moving Costs

3. Case Management 1 FTE HRS + benefits .25 supervisor + benefits $50,000

4. Child Care

5. Education Services

6. Employment Assistance

7. Food Consumer groups 12/year at $100 $1,200

8. Housing/Counseling Services .2 FTE HRS + benefits $28,352

9. Legal Services

10. Life Skills consumer engagement specialist $7,771

11. Mental Health Services

12. Outpatient Health Services

13. Outreach Services outreach specialist $8,333

14. Substance Abuse Treatment Services

15. Transportation $47.00 monthly bus passes x 60 $2,820

16. Utility Deposits

17. Operating Costs office supplies, space for 1.5 FTE $4,500
Total Annual Assistance Requested $109,309
Grant Term 1 Year
Total Request for Grant Term $109,309

Click the 'Save' button to automatically calculate totals.
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6G. Operating
Instructions:
Enter the quantity and total budget request for each operating cost. The request entered should
be equivalent to the cost of one year of the relevant operations activity.
Eligible Costs: The system populates a list of eligible operating costs for which funds can be
requested. The costs listed are the only costs allowed under 24 CFR 578.55.
Quantity AND Detail: This is a required field. A quantity AND description must be entered for
each requested cost. Enter the quantity in detail (e.g. .75 FTE hours and benefits for staff, utility
types, monthly allowance for supplies) for each operating cost for which funding is being
requested. Please note that simply stating “1FTE" is NOT providing "Quantity AND Detail” and
restricts understanding of what is being requested. Failure to enter adequate “"Quantity AND
Detail” may result in conditions being placed on the award and a delay of grant funding.
Annual Assistance Requested: This is a required field. For each grant year, enter the amount
of funds requested for each activity. The amount entered must only be the amount that is
DIRECTLY related to operating the housing or supportive services facility.
Total Annual Assistance Requested: This field is automatically calculated based on the sum of
the annual assistance requests entered for each activity.
Grant Term: This field is populated based on the grant term selected on Screen "6A. Funding
Request" and will be read only.
Tota!l Request for Grant Term: This field is automatically calculated based on the total amount
requested for each eligible cost multiplied by the grant term.
All total fields will be calculated once the required field has been completed and saved.
Additional Resources can be found at the HUD Exchange:
https://www.hudexchange.info/e-snaps/guides/coc-program-competition-resources
A quantity AND description must be entered for each requested cost.
Eligible Costs Quantity AND Description Annual Assistance
(max 400 characters) Requested
1. Maintenance/Repair Maintenance and Repair $3,750
2. Property Taxes and Insurance building insurance 1120 Monroe, liability, contents $1,000
3. Replacement Reserve
4. Building Security salary and benefits .11 FTE security on call employee $1,000
5. Electricity, Gas, and Water
6. Furniture
7. Equipment (lease, buy) Printer and office space $1,000
Total Annual Assistance Requested $6,750
Grant Term 1 Year
Total Request for Grant Term $6.750

Click the 'Save' button to automatically calculate totals.
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6H. HMIS Budget

Instructions:

Enter the quantity and total budget request for each HMIS cost. The request entered should be
equivalent to the cost of one year of the relevant HMIS activity. The system populates a list of
eligible costs associated with the implementation of an HMIS and for which CoC funds can be
requested.

Quantity Detail: This is a required field. A quantity AND description must be entered for each
requested cost. Enter the quantity in detail (eg. .75 FTE hours and benefits for staff, utility types,
monthly allowance for food and supplies) for each HMIS cost for which funding is being
requested. Please note that simply stating "1FTE” is NOT providing “Quantity AND Detail" and
restricts understanding of what is being requested. Failure to enter adequate “Quantity AND
Detail” may result in conditions being placed on the award and a delay of grant funding.

Annual Assistance Requested. This is a required field. For each grant year, enter the amount
funds requested for each activity.

Total Annual Assistance Requested: This field is automatically calculated based on the sum of
the annual assistance requests entered for each activity.

Grant term: This field is populated based on the grant term selected on Screen "6A. Funding
Request" and will be read only.

Total Request for Grant Term: This field is automatically calculated based on the total amount
requested for each eligible cost multiplied by the grant term.

All total fields will be calculated once the required field has been completed and saved.

Additional Resources can be found at the HUD Exchange:
https://www.hudexchange.info/e-snaps/guides/coc-program-competition-resources

A quantity AND description must be entered for each requested cost.

Eligible Costs Quantity AND Description Annual Assistance
(max 400 characters) Requested
1. Equipment 1 computer and equipment $1500 each $1,500
2. Software operating systems, virus, malware for 1 computers $273
3. Services
4. Personnel 1 FTE salary + benefits for data entry and analysis $35,227
5. Space & Operations
Total Annual Assistance Requested: $37,000
Grant Term: 1 Year
Total Request for Grant Term: $37,000
Click the 'Save' button to automatically calculate totals.
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6l. Sources of Match

The following list summarizes the funds that will be used as Match for the
project. To add a Matching source to the list, select the icon. To view or
update a Matching source already listed, select the icon.

Summary for Match
Total Value of Cash Commitments: $18,000
Total Value of In-Kind Commitments: $25,630
Total Value of All Commitments: $43,630

1. Will this project generate program income Yes
as described in 24 CFR 578.97 that will be
used as Match for this grant?

1a. Briefly describe the source of the program income:
(limit 1000 characters)

participant contribution towards rent

1b. Estimate the amount of program income $24,047
that will be used as Match for this project:

Before grant execution, services to be provided by a third party must be
documented by a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the
recipient or subrecipient and the third party that will provide the services.

Match | Type Source Contributor Date of Value of
Commitment Commitments
Yes Cash Private program income 02/01/2020 $18,000
Yes In-Kind Private Multiple Human 04/01/2019 $25,630
Se...
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Sources of Match Detail

1. Will this commitment be used towards Yes
match ?

2. Type of commitment: Cash
3. Type of source: Private

4. Name the source of the commitment: program income
(Be as specific as possible and include the
office or grant program as applicable)

5. Date of Written Commitment: 02/01/2020
6. Value of Written Commitment: $18,000

Sources of Match Detail

1. Will this commitment be used towards Yes
match ?

2. Type of commitment: In-Kind
3. Type of source: Private

4. Name the source of the commitment: Multiple Human Service Organizations
(Be as specific as possible and include the
office or grant program as applicable)

5. Date of Written Commitment: 04/01/2019
6. Value of Written Commitment: $25,630

Before grant execution, services to be provided by a third party must be
documented by a memorandum of understanding (MOU) between the
recipient or subrecipient and the third party that will provide the services.
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6J. Summary Budget

The following information summarizes the funding request for the total
term of the project. However, administrative costs can be entered in 8.

Admin field below.

Eligible Costs Annual Assistance Grant Term Total Assistance
Requested (Applicant) Requested
(Applicant) for Grant Term
(Applicant)
1a. Acquisition $0
1b. Rehabilitation $0
1c¢. New Construction $0
2a. Leased Units $132,072 1 Year $132,072
2b. Leased Structures $0 1 Year $0
3. Rental Assistance $0 1 Year $0
4. Supportive Services $109,309 1 Year $109,309
5. Operating $6,750 1 Year $6,750
6. HMIS $37,000 1 Year $37,000
7. Sub-total Costs Requested $285,131
8. Admin $21,462
(Up to 10%)
9. Total Assistance $306,593
Plus Admin Requested
10. Cash Match $18,000
11. In-Kind Match $25,630
12. Total Match $43,630
13. Total Budget $350,223
Click the 'Save' button to automatically calculate totals.
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7A. Attachment(s)
Document Type Required? Document Description Date Attached
1) Subrecipient Nonprofit No
Documentation
2) Other Attachment(s) No
3) Other Attachment(s) No
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Attachment Details

Document Description:

Attachment Details

Document Description:

Attachment Details

Document Description:
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7A. In-Kind MOU Attachment

Document Type Required? Document Description Date Attached

tn-Kind Match MOU No
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Attachment Details

Document Description:
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7D. Certification

A. For all projects:
Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity

It will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000(d)) and regulations
pursuant thereto (Title 24 CFR part 1), which state that no person in the United States shall, on
the ground of race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which
the applicant receives Federal financial assistance, and will immediately take any measures
necessary to effectuate this agreement. With reference to the real property and structure(s)
thereon which are provided or improved with the aid of Federal financial assistance extended to
the applicant, this assurance shall obligate the applicant, or in the case of any transfer,
transferee, for the period during which the real property and structure(s) are used for a purpose
for which the Federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the
provision of similar services or benefits.

It will comply with the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601-19), as amended, and with
implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 100, which prohibit discrimination in housing on the
basis of race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial status or national origin.

It will comply with Executive Order 11063 on Equal Opportunity in Housing and with
implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 107 which prohibit discrimination because of race,
color, creed, sex or national origin in housing and related facilities provided with Federal financial
assistance.

It will comply with Executive Order 11246 and all regulations pursuant thereto (41 CFR Chapter
60-1), which state that no person shall be discriminated against on the basis of race, color,
religion, sex or national origin in all phases of employment during the performance of Federal
contracts and shall take affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunity. The
applicant will incorporate, or cause to be incorporated, into any contract for construction work as
defined in Section 130.5 of HUD regulations the equal opportunity clause required by Section
130.15(b) of the HUD regulations.

It will comply with Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended
(12 U.S.C. 1701(u)), and regulations pursuant thereto (24 CFR Part 135), which require that to
the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given to lower-income
residents of the project and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded in
substantial part to persons residing in the area of the project.

It will comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), as amended,
and with implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 8, which prohibit discrimination based on
disability in Federally-assisted and conducted programs and activities.

It will comply with the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101-07), as amended, and
implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 146, which prohibit discrimination because of age in
projects and activities receiving Federal financial assistance.
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It will comply with Executive Orders 11625, 12432, and 12138, which state that program
participants shall take affirmative action to encourage participation by businesses owned and
operated by members of minority groups and women.

If persons of any particular race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, familial status, or
disability who may qualify for assistance are unlikely to be reached, it will establish additional
procedures to ensure that interested persons can obtain information concerning the assistance.

It will comply with the reasonable modification and accommodation requirements and, as
appropriate, the accessibility requirements of the Fair Housing Act and section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended.

Additional for Rental Assistance Projects:

If applicant has established a preference for targeted populations of disabled persons pursuant
to 24 CFR part 578 or 24 CFR 582.330(a), it will comply with this section's nondiscrimination
requirements within the designated population.

B. For non-Rental Assistance Projects Only.
15-Year Operation Rule.

Applicants receiving assistance for acquisition, rehabilitation or new construction: The project will
be operated for no less than 15 years from the date of initial occupancy or the date of initial
service provision for the purpose specified in the application.

1-Year Operation Rule.

Applicants receiving assistance for supportive services, leasing, or operating costs but not
receiving assistance for acquisition, rehabilitation, or new construction: The project will be
operated for the purpose specified in the application for any year for which such assistance is
provide

Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such applicant shall provide an explanation.

Name of Authorized Certifying Official: Vera Beech
Date: 08/23/2019
Title: Executive Director
Applicant Organization: Community Rebuilders
PHA Number (For PHA Applicants Only):

| certify that | have been duly authorized by | X
the applicant to submit this Applicant
Certification and to ensure compliance. | am
aware that any false, ficticious, or fraudulent
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statements or claims may subject me to
criminal, civil, or administrative penalties .
(U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001).

Active SAM Status Requirement.

| certify that our organization has an active
System for Award Management (SAM)
registration as required by 2 CFR 200.300(b)
at the time of project application submission
to HUD and will ensure this SAM registration
will be renewed annually to meet this
requirement.
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8B. Submission Summary

Applicant must click the submit button once all forms have a status of
Complete.

Applicant must click the submit button once all forms have a status of
Complete.

New Project Application FY2019 Page 51 08/23/2019




Applicant: Community Rebuilders
Project: LOFT 2

948960398

175527

Page

1A. SF-424 Application Type
1B. SF-424 Legal Applicant
1C. SF-424 Application Details
1D. SF-424 Congressional District(s)
1E. SF-424 Compliance

1F. SF-424 Declaration

1G. HUD 2880

1H. HUD 50070
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2A. Subrecipients
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3A. Project Detail
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4B. Housing Type
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5B. Subpopulations

6A. Funding Request

6C. Leased Units

6F. Supp Srvcs Budget

6G. Operating

6H. HMIS Budget

6l. Match

6J. Summary Budget

7A. Attachment(s)

Last Updated
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No Input Required
No Input Required
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08/20/2019
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08/05/2019
08/05/2019
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